

The Cess Act, 1880 Act 9 of 1880

Keyword(s): Annual Value of any Land, Commissioner, Cultivating Raiyat, Despatch, Estate, Holder of an Estate or Tenure, Holding, Immovable Property, Land, Part, Tenure, Collector, Collector of the District, The Settlement Officer, Zilla Parishad Fund

DISCLAIMER: This document is being furnished to you for your information by PRS Legislative Research (PRS). The contents of this document have been obtained from sources PRS believes to be reliable. These contents have not been independently verified, and PRS makes no representation or warranty as to the accuracy, completeness or correctness. In some cases the Principal Act and/or Amendment Act may not be available. Principal Acts may or may not include subsequent amendments. For authoritative text, please contact the relevant state department concerned or refer to the latest government publication or the gazette notification. Any person using this material should take their own professional and legal advice before acting on any information contained in this document. PRS or any persons connected with it do not accept any liability arising from the use of this document. PRS or any persons connected with it shall not be in any way responsible for any loss, damage, or distress to any person on account of any action taken or not taken on the basis of this document.

## Bengal Act IX of 1880

## [THE CESS ACT, 1880.]

#### CONTENTS.

## Preamble.

#### Preliminary.

- Section. I. Short title.
  - (Commencement.) Repealed. 2. Extent. Proviso.
    - Power to exempt districts from operation of Act.
  - 3. (Repealed.)
  - Interpretation-clause.

## PART I.

## CHAPTER I.

#### Imposition and Application of the Cesses.

- 5. All immovable property to be liable to a road cess and public works cess.
- 6. Cesses how to be assessed.
- 7. Public revenues not liable for more road cess than has been paid to Collector by persons liable.
- 8. (Omitted.)
- 9. Application of proceeds of road cess.
- 10. Application of proceeds of public works cess.
- 11. Power to fix cess year.

## PART II.

#### MODE OF ASSESSMENT.

#### CHAPTER II.

#### Valuation of Lands.

- 12. Board of Revenue may order valuation, and re-valuation.
- 13. After five years holder of estate or tenure may apply to Collector for re-valuation.
- Proclamation to make return of lands to be issued. Publication of proclamation.
- 15. Re-valuation may be of particular estates or tenures only.
- 16. Notice to lodge returns.
- 17. Form of notice and time for lodging returns.
- 18. Penalty for omitting to make return.
- 19. No rent to be recovered till return is made.
- 20. No rent to be recovered for land, etc., not mentioned in return. Proviso.

[Ben. Act IX

#### Section.

378

- 21. If returns not furnished, Collector to make valuation.
- 22. Valuation by Collector where return untrue or incorrect.
- 23. Recovery of expense of such valuation.
- 24. Person returned as cultivating raiyat may be served with notice.
- 25. If no return made, Collector may ascertain annual value of lands.
- 26. Collector may correct classification in returns.
- 27. Summary valuation of small revenue-paying estates and tenures.
- 28. Summary valuation of small revenue-free estates and rent-free tenures of which the area has been ascertained.
- 29. Computation of annual value of land comprised in a subordinate tenure in a summarily-valued estate or tenure.
- 30. When such land may be valued according to rate per acre.
- 31. Holder of summarily-valued estate or tenure may lodge return.
- 32. Collector may value small estate or tenure by regular process.

## Lands used for Tea, Coffee or Cinchona.

33. Return of plantations, etc.

#### Publication of Valuation-rolls and Duration of Valuations.

- 34. Valuation rolls to be prepared.
- 35. Publication of rolls.
  - To be attested by two persons.
- 36. Valuation and re-valuation to be in force for five years.
- Collector may reduce valuation, and may value and assess omitted and newly formed estates and tenures.

#### [CHAPTER IIA (Western Bengal).]

37A to 37-I. (Repealed.)

#### CHAPTER III.

#### Rating and Levy of the Cesses.

- 38. Rate at which road cess shall be levied, how to be fixed.
- 39. Rate at which public works cess shall be levied, how to be fixed.
- 40. Notice showing amount of cess payable to be served on zamindars.
- 40A. Recovery of cess from tenures in Government estates.
  - 41. Mode of payment of road cess and public works cess by holder of estate;
    by holder of tenure;
    by cultivating *raiyat*;
    - (Western Bengal) by holders of chaukidari chakran lands.
  - Time of payment by holder of an estate; by tenure-holder and *raiyat*.

## of 1880.]

#### Section.

43. Distribution of valuation in case of partition.

Procedure to be followed when there is a partition.

- 44. Effect of opening separate account under Act XI of 1859 of Bengal Act VII of 1876.
- 45. Effect of payment or non-payment of cess on or before due date.
- 46. With permission of the Board of Revenue, Collector may keep separate account of cesses payable by registered holders of revenue-free estates.
- 47. Recovery by holders of estates or tenures.
- 48. Recovery from co-shareholders.
- 49. Recovery by recorded shareholders from their co-sharers by certificate process.

#### CHAPTER IV.

## Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.

- 50. Rent-free lands in what estates or tenures to be included for the purposes of this Act.
- 51. Holders of estates and tenures bound to return rent-free lands and to pay cess at half rates for such lands included therein.
- 51A. Information regarding rent-free lands.
- 52. Notice and extracts of valuation-roll to be published by Collector in respect of such rent-free lands.
- 52A. Certificate of publication of notice under section 52.
  - 53. Holder of rent-free land may object to valuation.
  - 54. Notice to be published by holders of estate in certain cesses.
  - 55. Mode of publication.
  - 56. Owner of rent-free land bound to pay cess at full rate.
  - 57. Instalments to be fixed by Board of Revenue.
- 57A. Place of payment or tender of cess.
  - 58. If instalments not paid within a month, double the amount may be recovered.
  - 59. Holders of estates, etc., may send in supplementary returns in respect of rent-free lands.
  - 60. Effect of supplementary returns.
  - 61. Sections applicable to amounts payable by owner, etc., of rent-free land.
  - 62. Section 58 not applicable to such amounts until sections 52, 53 and 54 are complied with.
  - 63. Owner of rent-free land liable to pay cess in future.
  - 64. Additional return of rent-free land entered in return under Bengal Act X of 1871 may be made.

Additional return to be deemed supplementary return.

- 64A. Holders of estates, etc., how to recover from holders of rent-free lands.
- 64B. Owner, holder or occupier of rent-free lands may be sued. Decree against occupier tantamount to decree against owner.
- 65. Occupier may deduct cess paid from rent.
- 66. Notice to be served on holder of rent-free land requiring him to lodge return.
- 67. If no notice served, such holder bound to notify omission to Collector.
- 68. Collector thereupon may require such holder to make return.
- 69. Order to have effect of notice.
- 70. Liability of such holder to pay arrears of cesses.
- 71. Such holder is not liable to pay cesses except to Collector or his Deputy.

[Ben. Act IX

1...

#### CHAPTER V.

# Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.

## Section.

- 72. Notice to return profits.
- 72A. (Western Bengal) Penalty for omitting to lodge a return.
  - 73. When property lies in different districts.
  - 74. When property is partly outside the State.
  - 75. If return not furnished or incorrect, Collector to make valuation.
  - 76. Valuation where compilation of average not possible.
  - 77. Cost of valuation from whom to be recovered.
  - 78. Notice of valuation.
  - 79. Valuations under this chapter to be annual. Declaration of annual net profits by owner for five years. Effect of acceptance by Collector of declaration.
  - 80. Notice of rate of cess and date of payment.
  - 81. Recovery by occupier or owner who has paid in excess.
  - 82. How distributed when property in different districts.
  - 83. Determination of proportion of profits when property in different districts.
  - 84. Service of notices under this chapter.

## CHAPTER VI.

#### Special Provisions for [Orissa and] Midnapore.

- 85. Collectors in [Orissa and] Midnapore may order certain revenue-free estates to be annexed to other estates for purposes of payment of cess.
- 86. Notice to be given to holder of estate to which such revenue-free estate is annexed.
- 87. Notice to be given to holder of revenue-free estate.
- Cesses payable by holder of revenue-free estate in such instalments as Board of Revenue may direct.
- 89. Notices to be served.
- 90. Collector may revoke orders passed under section 85.

#### CHAPTER VII.

#### Miscellaneous.

- 91. Collector may appoint certain establishments.
- 91A. (Western Bengal) Payment of commission to tahsildars.
  - 92. Powers of Collector in making valuation.
  - 93. Commissioner of Board may revise valuation.
  - 94. False returns.
  - 95. Returns evidence against the maker only,
  - 96. Service of notices under this Part.
  - Costs of service.
     No costs to be recovered for certain notices.

## of 1880.]

ļ,

....

i

#### Section.

- 98. Dues under the Act to be levied as public demand.
- Collector may recover dues out of rent. Collector's claim to have priority.
- 100. Board of Revenue may invest any person with Collector's powers.
- 101. Collector may delegate powers.
- 102. Appeals against valuation.
- 103. Orders for levy of fine appealable.
- 104. Orders appealable to Commissioner.
- (Western Bengal) Revision of orders by Collector, and control and supervision by Commissioner and Board.
   (Eastern Bengal) Collector's proceedings subject to supervision of Commissioner and Board.
- 106. Board may make rules.
- 107. All rights in immovable property saved unless affected by this Act.

## CHAPTER VIIA.

Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.

- 107A. Application of chapter.
- 107B. Definitions.
- 107C. Cess-paying and cess-free lands.
- 107D. Determination of acreage rate.
- 107E. Determination of cess-free and cess-paying lands.
- 107F. Preliminary publication of division of district into units, acreage rate and classes of cess-free lands.
- 107G. Appeal to and revision by a revenue authority and final publication of division of district, acreage rate and classes of cess-free lands.
- 107H. Rates at which cess to be levied.
- 107I. Preparation and publication of valuation-rolls, statements, and lists of lands.
- 107J. Power of Collector to call for returns from owners or holders of estates or other interests.
- 107K. Copies of or extracts from valuation-roll to be available on payment of fees.
- 107L. Correction of mistakes in valuation-roll.
- 107M. Payment of cess.
- 107N. Power to Collector to grant abatement or remission of cess.
- 1070. Power to serve notice showing cess and fixing the date from which cess shall take effect.
- 107P. Particulars of cess to be specified in receipts.
- 107Q. Alteration of annual value and revision of valuation-roll in certain cases.
- 107R. Rules.
- 1078 Application of certain provisions of this Act to this chapter

## [Ben. Act IX of 1880.]

Ņ,

## PART III.

CONSTITUTION AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE DISTRICT ROAD FUND.

## CHAPTER VIII.

## Constitution and Application of the District Road Fund.

#### Section.

108. Constitution of District Road Fund.

109. Application of District Road Fund.

110 to 181. (Repealed.)

## PART IV.

#### CHAPTER XIII.

#### General.

182. State Government empowered to prescribe forms and rules.

Schedules A to F-Forms.

Schedule G—Names of districts in which, or in parts of which, valuation or revaluation shall be made under Chapter VIIA.

Bengal Act IX of 1880							
[THE CESS ACT, 1880.] <sup>1</sup>							
Amended	Ben. Act II of 1881.         Ben. Act VII of 1881.         Ben. Act V of 1908.         Ben. Act I of 1914.         Ben. Act V of 1915.         Ben. Act XIV of 1932.         Ben. Act XI of 1934.         Ben. Act III of 1939.         Ben. Act IX of 1946.         West Ben. Act XII of 1947.         West Ben. Act XXII of 1963.         West Ben. Act XXII of 1963.         West Ben. Act XXII of 1964.         West Ben. Act XXXII of 1973.         West Ben. Act XXXV of 1981.         West Ben. Act XXXV of 1981.						
REPEALED IN PART AND AMEND	Ben. Act III of 1885. Ben. Act I of 1903. Ben. Act IV of 1910. Ben. Act I of 1939.						
Adapted	<ul> <li>(a) The Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.</li> <li>(b) The Indian Independence (Adaptation of Bengal and Punjab Acts) Ordér, 1948.</li> <li>(c) The Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.</li> </ul>						
	[13th October, 1880.]						

#### An Act to amend and consolidate the Law relating to rating for the Construction, Charges and Maintenance of District Communications and other Works of Public Utility, and of Provincial Public Works.

WHEREAS it is expedient to amend and consolidate the law relating to rating for the construction, charges and maintenance of district roads and other means of communication, and of provincial public works, within the territories administered by the Lieutenant-Governor of Bengal<sup>2</sup>, and to the levy of a road cess and a public works cess on immovable property situate therein, and to the constitution of local committees for the management of the proceeds of the said road cess, and also to provide for the construction and maintenance of other works of public utility out of the proceeds of the said road cess;

#### Preliminary.

This Act may be called the Cess Act, 1880; ١. (Commencement.)—Rep. by s. 4 and the Third Sch. of the Amending Act, 1903 (1 of 1903).

2. This Act shall take effect at once in every district<sup>3</sup> and part of a district in which Bengal Act X of 18714 (an Act to provide for local rating for the construction and maintenance of roads and other means of communication) and Bengal Act II of 18774 (an Act to provide for the levy

Preamble.

İ

Extent.

Short fitle

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>LEGISLATIVE PAPERS.—For Proceedings in Council, see the Calcutta Gazette of 1879, Supplement, page 1508; *ibid.*, page 180, Supplement, pages 45, 291, 323, 379, 406 and 948. <sup>2</sup>This includes the present State of West Bengal and other territory. <sup>3</sup>These now comprise all districts which form the State of West Bengal. <sup>4</sup>Ben. Acts X of 1871 and II of 1877 have been renealed by s -3 of the present Act.

[Ben. Act IX

## (Preliminary.—Sections 3, 4.)

of a cess for the construction, charges and maintenance of provincial public works) may be in force on the date of the commencement of this Act.

[The <sup>1</sup>[State Government] may, by notification, in the <sup>2</sup>[Official Gazette], extend its provisions to any other district or part of a district situate in the territories for the time being administered by J(it); and this Act shall take effect accordingly therein from the date specified in such notification: ]

Provided that nothing herein contained shall be deemed to affect any immovable property within the limits of the ordinary original jurisdiction of <sup>4</sup>[the High Court at Calcutta], or within the limits of any <sup>5</sup>[municipality under the Bengal Municipal Act, 1932].

Ben. Act XV of 1932.

Power to exempt districts from operation of Act.

Inter-

clause. "Annual

value of

land, etc.":

pretation-

The '[State Government] may, by notification in the '[Official Gazette], exempt any district or part of a district, or any estate or tenure, from the operation of this Act, or from the operation of so much thereof as relates to the road cess, or as relates to the public works cess, and may at any time, by a similar notification, revoke such exemption.

3. [Repeal of District Road Cess Act, 1971, and Provincial Public Works Act, 1877.]-Rep. by sec. 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939).

4. In this Act, unless there be something repugnant in the subject or conlext,-

6"annual value of any land, estate or tenure" means the total 7\* \* rent which is payable, or, if no 7\* \* rent is actually payable, would, on a reasonable assessment, be payable, during the year by all the cultivating raiyats of such Land, estate or tenure,

<sup>8</sup>"annual value of any land estate or tenure" means the total revenue or rent which is payable, or, if no revenue or rent is actually payable, would, on a reasonable assessment, be payable, during the year by all the cultivating raiyats of such land,

"Annual value of land, etc.":

'The words "Provincial Government" were originally substituted for the word "Licutenant-Governor" by paragraph 4(1) of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937, and thereafter the word "State" was substituted for the word "Provincial" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950. "These words were substituted for the words "Calcutta Gazette," by paragraph 4(1) of the Comment of India (Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

These words and figures were substituted for the words and figures "first or second class municipality under the Bengal Municipal Act, 1876" by s. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939).

"This definition is in force in this form in Western Bengal,

The differences in the definition as in force in Western Bengal and in Eastern Bengal respectively, lie in the words printed in italics. See also foot-note under "Local Extent" on page 383, ante. <sup>3</sup>The words "revenue or" were repealed in Western Bengal by s, 2(1) of the Bengal

Cess (Amendment) Act. 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910). "This definition is in farce, in this form in Eastern Bengal. See also foot-pole under "I ceal Extent" on page 383 gate

٦.

Proviso

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> These words were substituted for the words "Characterized of the government of India (Adaptation of India Laws) Order, 1937. <sup>1</sup> This word was substituted for the word "him" by paragraph 5(2), *ibid.* <sup>4</sup> These words were substituted for the words "The High Court of Judicature at Fort William in Bengal," by paragraph 3 of, and the Eleventh Schedule to, the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1969. Laws Order, 1950.

#### of 1880.]

(Preliminary.—Section 4.)

or by other persons in the actual use and occupation thereof:

<sup>1</sup>Explanation.—For purpose of the foregoing definition, whatever is lawfully payable or deliverable, or would, on a reasonable assessment, be lawfully payable or deliverable, in money or in kind, directly to the Government,—

- (a) by raiyats cultivating land in a Government estate on account of the use or occupation of the land, or
- (b) by other persons in the actual use and occupation of land in such an estate.

shall be deemed to be "rent":

estate or tenure, or by other persons in the actual use and occupation thereof:

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Division:

"cultivating raiyat" means a person cultivating land and paying rent thereof not exceeding one hundred rupees per annum:

*Explanation*— When rent is payable in kind, the money value thereof shall, for the purposes of this Act, be taken to be the annual value of the land-lord's share of the crop calculated on an average of the three years next preceding any valuation or re-valuation under this Act:

<sup>2</sup>"despatch", in relation to a coal mine, means the quantity of coke and coal despatched from the coal mine and that, in relation to other mines and quarries including sand quarries, means the quantity of minerals/ sand despatched from such mine or quarry;

"district" means the local area to which a Collector is appointed and no lands situate beyond the limits of such local area shall be deemed to form part of a district by reason of their forming part of an estate paying revenue to the Collector thereof:

"estate" means—

Ben. Act

VII of 1876.

 land included under one entry in the general registers of revenue-paying lands and of revenue-free lands prepared and maintained by the Collector of a district under the Land Registration Act, 1876, or any similar law for the time being in force;

<sup>1</sup>The Explanation applies only to Western Bengal. It was added by s. 2(2) of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910).

"Commissioner": "Cultivating raiyat":-

"District":

"Estate";

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>This "definition" was originally added by s. 2 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act. 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964). Later, the present "definition" was substituted for the original by s. 2 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

#### (Preliminary.—Section 4.)

(2) any land other than the holding of a cultivating raiyat, the э, revenue or rent of which may be payable directly to the Collector or any person specially appointed by him to collect the same: (3) any land acquired under any rules issued by, or under authority of, Government for the sale, grant, lease or clearance of waste-lands: "Holder of "holder of an estate or tenure" means all or any of the holders thereof, an estate or and, where two or more persons are jointly holders thereof, they shall tenure": be jointly and severally liable under this Act: "Holding": "holding" means the land held by a cultivating raiyat: "Immovable "immovable property" includes lands and all benefits to arise out of property": land and things attached to the earth, or permanently fastened to anything which is attached to the earth, but does not include crops of any kind, or houses, shops or other buildings: "Land": "land" means land which is cultivated, uncultivated or covered with water, and does not include houses or buildings: "Part," "Part" "chapter" and "section" means respectively a Part, chapter and "chapter" section of this Act: and "section": "Schedule": "Schedule" means a schedule to this Act annexed, and every such schedule shall be read as part of this Act: "Tenure": "tenure" includes every interest in land, whether rent-paying or not save and except an estate as above defined, and save and except the interest of a cultivating raiyat: "The "the Collector" includes any person specially invested with the powers Collector": of a Collector for the purposes of this Act, and means-(i) when used in reference to revenue-paying estates and lands comprised therein, to all proceedings connected therewith and to the assessment and levy of cesses in respect thereof, the Collector or other similar officer on whose revenue-roll such estates are borne; (ii) when used in reference to revenue-free estates and lands comprised therein, to all proceedings connected therewith and to the assessment and levy of cesses in respect thereof, the Collector or other similar officer on whose general register of revenue-free lands such estates are borne; "The "the Collector of the district" includes any person specially invested Collector of with the powers of a Collector for the purposes of this Act, and means the district." the officer in charge of the revenue-administration of a district:

#### of 1880.]

VIII of

1885.

## (Preliminary.--Section 4.)

"the Settlement Officer" means the Revenue-officer appointed by the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] under the designation of Settlement Officer or Assistant Settlement Officer, for the purpose of preparing or revising records-of-rights, under Chapter X of the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, or any other law for the time being in force, in respect of the lands in any local area, estate or tenure, or part thereof,

and includes any officer appointed by the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] to maintain recordsof-rights so prepared or revised.

3*	*	*	*	*	*	*
3#	¥	*	*	+		*

"Year" means the cess year as determined by the '[Board of Revenue] "Year." under section 11.

<sup>5</sup>"Zilla Parishad" means a Zilla Parishad established under section 3 of the West Bengal Zilla Parishads Act, 1963. <sup>5</sup>Zilla Parishad Fund" means the fund constituted under section 40 of the West Bengal Zilla Parishads

Act, 1963.

'This definition of "the Settlement Officer" applies only to Western Bengal. It was inserted by s. 2(3) of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910).

"The words "Provincial Government" were originally substituted for the words "Local Government" by paragraph 4(1) of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937, and thereafter the word "State" was substituted for the word "Provincial" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

<sup>3</sup>The definitions of "District Board" and "District Fund" were substituted for the definition of "the Committee" by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act, 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885). Later, those definitions were omitted by s. 118 of, and second Schedule to, the West Bengal Zilla Parishads Act, 1963 (West Ben. Act XXXV of 1963).

"These words were substituted for the word "Lieutenant-Governor" by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>3</sup>These definition of "Zilla Parishad" and "Zilla Parishad Fund" were added by s. 118 of, and Second Schedule to, the West Bengal Zilla Parishads Act, 1963 (West Ben. Act XXXV of 1963). "The Settlement officer."

West Ben. Act XXV of 1963.

ł

## (Part I.—Chapter I.—Imposition and Application of the Cesses.— Sections 5, 6.)

## PART 1.

#### CHAPTER I.

#### Imposition and Application of the Cesses.

5. From and after the commencement of this Act in any district or part of a district, all immovable property situate therein except as otherwise in [section 2] provided, shall be liable to the payment of a road cess and a public works cess.

Cesses how to be assessed.

All immovable

property to

road cess and public

works cess.

be liable to a

- The road cess and the public works cess <sup>2</sup>[shall be assessed—

   (a) in respect of lands, on the annual value thereof,
  - <sup>3</sup>(b) in respect of all mines and quarries, on the annual despatches therefrom, and
  - (c) in respect of <sup>4\*</sup> \* \* \* \* \* tramways, railways and other immovable property, on the annual net profits thereof,
  - ascertained respectively as in this Act prescribed;]

and the rates at which such cesses respectively shall be levied for each year shall be determined for such year in the manner in this Act prescribed:

<sup>5</sup>Provided that—

- the rates of such road cess and public works cess shall not exceed six paise and twenty-five paise respectively on each rupee of such annual value,
- (2) the rates of each of such road cess and public works cess shall not exceed—
  - <sup>6</sup>(i) fifty paise on each tonne of coal, minerals or sand of such annual despatches, and
  - (ii) six paise on each rupee of such annual net profits.

<sup>3</sup>Clause (b) was substituted by s. 3(a) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

<sup>4</sup>The words "mines other than coal mines, quarries." were omitted by s. 3(b), *ibid.* <sup>4</sup>Proviso to section 6 with the *Explanation* was first substituted by s. 3(2) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964). Later, the present proviso with the *Explanation* was substituted for the previous by s. 2 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1973 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1973).

<sup>6</sup>Sub-clause (i) of clause (2) of the proviso was substituted by s. 3 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben, Act XXXII of 1984).

۶.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This word and figure were substituted for the words and figures "sections 2 and 8" by s. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Clauses (a), (b) and (c) beginning with the words "shall be assessed---" and ending with the words "ascertained respectively as in this Act prescribed;" were first substituted for the words beginning with "shall be assessed on the annual value of lands" and ending with "ascertained respectively as in this Act prescribed" by s. 3(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendanent) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964), Prior to this substitution the words "until provision to the contrary is made by the Central Legislature" were originally inserted by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937, and thereafter the word "Parliament" was substituted for the words "Central Legislature" by para. 3 of, and the Eleventh Schedule to, the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

of 1880.]

## (Part I.—Chapter I.—Imposition and Application of the Cesses.— Sections 7-10.)

Explanation.—For the purposes of this proviso, one tonne of coke shall be counted as one and a quarter tonne of coal:

Provided that the rate at which each such cess shall be levied for any one year shall not exceed the rate of one-half *anna* on each rupee of such annual value and annual net profits respectively.

7. Nothing in this Act contained shall be deemed to require the payment by the <sup>1</sup>[State Government]  $^{2*}$  \* \*, from the public revenues, of any sum as road cess in excess of such sums as may have been paid as such cess to the Collector by persons liable to pay the same.

8. [Government and guaranteed railways not liable to the cesses without consent of Governor General in Council.]—Omitted by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.

9. The proceeds of the road cess in each district shall be paid into the District Road Fund of such district, as hereinafter provided.

\* \*

 The proceeds of the public works cess <sup>4</sup>[and interest paid thereon] shall be paid into the public treasury.

See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

3\*

5\*

<sup>2</sup>The words "of Bengal" were omitted by Article 3 (1) of, and the Schedule to, the Indian Independence (Adaptation of Bengal and Punjab Acts) Order, 1948.

<sup>3</sup>The words "and together with other assets of such fund, shall be applied to the purposes mentioned in section 109" were omitted by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act, 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

<sup>4</sup>These words were inserted by s, 2 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act II of 1881).

<sup>5</sup>The rest of this section commenting with the words "and shall be applied" and ending with the words "may direct" was omitted by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.

not liable for more road cess than has been paid to Collector by persons liable.

Public revenues

of road cess.

Application

of proceeds

Application of proceeds of public works cess.

#### [Ben. Act IX

## (Part I.—Chapter I.—Imposition and Application of the Cesses.— Section 11.—Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.— Valuation of Lands.—Sections 12, 13.)

11. The '[Board of Revenue] shall, by an order published in the '[Official Gazette] fix the date from which the cesses leviable under this Act in any district or part of a district shall take effect therein, and may fix and from time to time alter the date from which the cess year shall run in any district or part thereof.

#### PART II.

#### MODE OF ASSESSMENT.

#### CHAPTER II.

#### Valuation of Lands.

12. Upon the commencement of this Act in any district or part of a district, the <sup>3</sup>[Board of Revenue] may order that a valuation shall be made of such district or part of a district; and from time to time, after the expiration of the term of five years from the beginning of the year in which the levy of the cesses took effect in accordance with any such valuation, or with any re-valuation as hereafter provided in this section <sup>4\*</sup> \* \*, or at any time within twelve months previous to the expiration of such term,

the <sup>3</sup>[Board of Revenue] may, if <sup>5</sup>they think fit, order that a re-valuation shall be made of any such district or part of a district, and such re-valuation shall take effect from the beginning of such year as the <sup>3</sup>[Board of Revenue] may direct.

13. Whenever the term of five years shall have expired from the beginning of the year in which the levy of the cesses took effect in any estate or tenure in accordance with any valuation <sup>6</sup>[or re-valuation] under this Act <sup>7\*</sup> \* \* \* the holder of any such estate or tenure may apply to the Collector to re-value his estate or tenure, and for such purpose shall lodge in the office of the Collector returns in the form in Schedule A

"These words were inserted by s. 3 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben, Act II of 1881).

Board of Revenue may order valuation, and revaluation.

After five years holder of estate or tenure may apply to Collector for re-valuation.

390

Power to fix

cess year.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>These words were substituted for the word "Lieutenant-Governor" by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>See foot-note 2 on page 384, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>These words were substituted for the word "Lieutenant-Governor", for Western Bengal, by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and for Eastern Bengal, by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words "or in Chapter IIA" were repealed in Western Bengal, by s. 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben, Act I of 1939).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>This word "they" in s. 12, was substituted for the word "he" for Western Bengal, by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and for Eastern Bengal, by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>The words and figures "or Bengal Act X of 1871" were repealed by s. 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act 1 of 1939).

of 1880.]

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 14, 15.)

• contained; and thereupon the Collector shall proceed to revalue such estate or tenurc, and, if he makes any alteration in the valuation of any such tenure, shall give notice of such alteration to the holder of the estate or superior tenure in which such tenure is included, and shall alter the valuation of such estate or superior tenure accordingly:

Provided that no re-valuation or reduction of the amount of cesses previously payable in respect of any estate or tenure, in consequence of a re-valuation under this section, shall take effect until the beginning of the year commencing next after such re-valuation, unless the application for re-valuation shall have been made and the necessary returns logded in the Collector's office within three months after the beginning of a year, in which case such re-valuation and reduction, if any, shall take effect from the commencement of such year.

14. Whenever the '[Board of Revenue] has ordered <sup>2</sup>[under section 12] that a valuation or a re-valuation of any district or part of a district shall be made for the purposes of this Act, the Collector of the district shall cause a proclamation to be issued requiring every holder of an estate of tenure which is liable to pay an annual amount of revenue or an annual amount of rent exceeding one hundred rupees and every holder of a revenue-free estate or rent-free tenure the gross annual rental of which exceeds one hundred rupees, severally to lodge at the office of such Collector within one month a return of all lands comprised in his estate or tenure, in the form in Schedule A contained, giving the particulars in such form set forth.

The Collector of the district shall cause such proclamation to be published by affixing a copy thereof in some conspicuous place in the office of such Collector, in every Civil Court, in every police-station, and in the office of every Subdivisional Officer within the district, and in any other manner which the <sup>1</sup>[Board of Revenue] may from time to time direct.

15. At any time at which the '[Board or Revenue] might order a re-valuation of a district or part of a district to be made as provided by section 12, <sup>3</sup>[they] may, if <sup>3</sup>[they] think fit instead of so ordering, make an order that particular estates or tenures only in such district or part of a district shall be re-valued.

Proclamation to make return of lands to be issued,

Publication of proclamation.

Re-valuation may be of particular estates or tenures only. į

ł

ļ

ł

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>These words and figures within square brackets were inserted, for Western Bengal, by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and, for Eastern Bengal, by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>This word was substituted for the word "he" for Western Bengal by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and for Eastern Bengal, by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

## Ben. Act IX

Natice to

lodge

returns.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 16, 17.)

Whenever any proclamation has been published as mentioned in 16. section 14, in any district, and whenever the [Board of Revenue] has made an order, under the last preceding section, that a re-valuation of particular estates and tenures only shall be made, the Collector shall cause a notice to be served in respect of every estate and tenure which is to be valued or re-valued and in respect of which no return shall have been lodged in accordance with the requirement of such proclamation, requiring every holder of such estate of tenure severally to ladge at the office of the Collector the return mentioned in section 14;

and shall also cause a similar notice to be served in respect of every tenure included in any such estate or tenure which may have been named in any return lodged in pursuance of the provisions of this Act, or of Bengal Act X of 1871<sup>2</sup>, either for the purposes of the valuation or re-valuation then contemplated, or for the purposes of any previous valuation or re-valuation, or of which the existence may in any other way have come to his knowledge.

17. The notice mentioned in the last preceding section shall be in the Form No. I in Schedule B contained, or in the Form No. II in the said schedule contained, as the case may be, and shall require every holder of the estate or tenure severally to lodge the return within the time specified below, namely:-

In the case of Revenue-paying Estates and Rent-paying Tenures.

If the return relate to an estate or tenure which is liable to the payment of actual revenue or of rent not exceeding Rs. 500, or to any share or interest in such estate or tenure.

If the return relate to any other estate or tenure, or to any share or interest therein.

In the case of Revenue-free Estates and Rent-free Tenures.

If the return relate to an estate or tenure which is the gross annual rental does not exceed Rs. 500, or to any share or interest in such estate or tenure.

If the return relate to any other estate or tenure, or to any share or interest therein.

Within six weeks of the service of the notice.

Within three months of the service of the notice.

Within six weeks of the service of

Within three months of the service

the notice.

of the notice.

The Collector may in his discretion extend the time allowed for lodging any such return.

392

г.

Form of notice and time for lodging reiums,

÷

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Ben. Act X of 1871 has been repealed by this Act-See s. 3.

#### of 1880.]

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 18-20.)

18. All holders of estates or tenures in respect of which such notice has been served who shall, without sufficient cause being shown to the satisfaction of the Collector, refuse or omit to lodge the required return in the office of such Collector within the time allowed by such notice in respect of the estate or tenure which they hold, or within any extended time which may have been allowed by the Collector for lodging such return, shall be severally liable to a fine which may extend to fifty rupces for every day after the expiration of such time or extended time until such return is furnished, or until the value of the lands comprised in their respective estates and tenures shall have been otherwise ascertained and determined by the Collector as hereinafter provided.

The amount of such fine accruing due from time to time may be levied by the Collector as provided in section 98 or 99, and the fact of an appeal against such fine being pending shall not avail to prevent the levy of any such fine pending the disposal of the appeal, unless the Commissioner shall otherwise direct.

Whenever the amount levicd in respect of any such fine exceeds five hundred rupees, the Collector shall report the case specially to the Commissioner; and no further levy for such default shall be made otherwise than by authority of the Commissioner.

19. From and after the expiry of the time allowed by the notice, or of any extended time under the provisions of section 17, every holder of an estate or tenure in respect of which such notice has been served shall be precluded from suing for or recovering rent for any land or tenure situate in any estate or tenure in respect of which no return has been lodged as aforesaid.

The Collector may send a list to the Civil Court of all such holders so making default in lodging returns as aforesaid, and such Court shall take judicial notice of the same.

Whenever the required return is lodged in respect of any estate or tenure or whenever the valuation of any such estate or tenure has been otherwise completed, the disability imposed on the holder thereof by this section shall cease; and, if such estate or tenure shall have been included in any list as aforesaid, the Collector shall forthwith give notice to the Civil Court of the cessation of such disability.

20. Every holder of an estate or tenure in respect of which a return has been made as required by this chapter shall be precluded from suing for or recovering—

(a) any rent whatsoever for any land, holding or tenure forming part of the estate or tenure to which such return relates, but which has not been mentioned in such return, unless it be proved that the holding or tenure for No rent to be recovered till return is made.

Penalty for omitting to

make return.

393

No rent to be recovered for land, etc., not mentioned in return.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.-–Sections 21, 22.)

the rent of which the rent is claimed was created subsequently to the lodging of such return;

(b) rent at any higher rate than is mentioned is such return for any land, holding or tenure included in such return unless it be proved that the rent of such land or tenure has been lawfully enhanced subsequently to the lodging of such return:

Provided that the Collector may at his discretion, at any time within six months from the presentation of any return made under this Part, receive a petition correcting any such return;

and on the acceptance of such petition may make such correction in the valuation of the estate or tenure as may be required;

and, as soon as the person in respect of whose estate or tenure, the return and valuation have been so corrected shall have paid in all sums due by him as road cess and public works cess in accordance with such corrected valuation and not otherwise such person may recover such rent as may be due to him on any tenure or land included in the return of such estate or tenure at any rate not being in excess of the rate shown in the corrected return as payable in respect of such tenure or land.

Such notices as the Collector may direct shall be served upon the parties affected by such petition at the expense of the person lodging the return as aforesaid.

21. If no return shall have been lodged in respect of any lands for which notice under section 16 has been issued, the Collector may, after the expiration of the time allowed by the notice, or of such extended time as is mentioned in section 17, ascertain and fix, by such ways and means as to him shall seem expedient, the annual value of any estate, tenure or lands mentioned in such notice; and all expenses incurred in making such valuation may be recovered with all costs of recovery thereof as provided in sections 98 and 99.

Valuation by Collector where return untrue or incorrect.

If returns not

furnished,

valuation.

Collector to make

<sup>1</sup>22. If the Collector is satisfied, for reasons to be recorded by him in writing, that any return made under this Act is untrue or incorrect, he may, be such ways and means as to him may seem expedient, ascertain and fix the annual value of the lands in respect of which the return has been made:

Provided that no such action shall be taken without giving notice to the person who made the return and allowing him an opportunity to prove that the return is not untrue or incorrect.

394

Proviso.

 $l_{i}$ 

Sections 22 and 23 which were in force in this form in Western Bengal, having been substituted by s. 6 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben, Act IV of 1910) were substituted for the original sections 22 and 23 by s. 2 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben, Act XI of 1934).

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 23-27.)

<sup>1</sup>23. The expense of any valuation made by the Collector under section 22 may be recovered, in the manner prescribed in sections 98 and 99, from the person by whom the untrue or incorrect return was made:

Provided that, where such return relates to lands for which no rent is payable by cultivating *raiyats* to the person who made the return, and the annual value of such lands, as determined by the Collector under section 22, does not exceed by one-fifth the value stated in such return, the said expense shall be borne by the District Road Fund.

24. The Collector may, whenever he may think fit cause a notice in the Form No. I in Schedule B contained to be served on any person holding any lands or possessing any interest therein, although such person may have been mentioned in any return as a cultivating *raiyat*; and thereupon such person shall be bound to make a return of the annual value of such lands within one month from the service of such notice in the form in Schedule A contained, and the provisions of sections 17 and 18 regarding extension of time for lodging a return and regarding fines respectively shall be applicable to such person.

25. If no return is made by any person on whom a notice has been served as provided in the last preceding section, the Collector may proceed, by such ways and means as to him shall seem expedient, to ascertain the annual value of the lands held by such person; and, in case it appears that such annual value is greater than the rent paid by such person, the expense of such valuation shall be borne by such person and may be recovered with all costs of recovery thereof as provided in sections 98 and 99, but in all other cases shall be borne by the District Road Fund.

26. If it shall appear to the Collector that any person on whom a notice has been served under section 24 has been wrongly classed in the return as a cultivating *raiyat*, the Collector may direct that the entry be corrected and that such person be classed as a tenure-holder;

and thereupon such person shall be deemed to be a tenure-holder for the purposes of the assessment and levy of the cesses in respect of the lands held by him.

27. Whenever the revenue annually payable in respect of any estate, or the rent annually payable in respect of any tenure, does not exceed the sum of one hundred rupees, the Collector may, without issuing any notice for such estate or tenure,—

(a) in any case determine the annual value of the land comprised therein to be in a permanently-settled estate or tenure a sum not exceeding three times, and in a temporarily-settled estate or tenure a sum not Recovery of expense of such valuation.

Person returned as cultivating raiyat may be served with notice.

If no return made, Collector may ascertain annual value of lands.

Collector may correct classification in returns.

Summary valuation of small revenuepaying estates and tenures.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 1 on page 394, ante.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 28, 29.)

exceeding twice, the amount of the annual revenue or rent payable therefor; or,

(b) when the area of the said estate or tenure has been ascertained, determine the annual value of such estate or tenure to be at such rate per acre as to him shall seem fit.

28. When the area of any revenue-free estates or rent-free tenure, the

gross rental of which does not exceed, or is not estimated by the Collector

to exceed, the sum of one hundred rupees, has been ascertained, the

Collector may, without issuing any notice for such estate or tenure,

determine the annual value of such estate or tenure to be at such rate per

Summary valuation of small revenue-free estates and rent-free tenurys of which the area has been ascenained.

P.

Computation of annual value of land comprised in a subordinate tenure in a summarily valued estate or tenure. acre as to him may seem fit.
29. When the land contained in any estate or tenure has been summarily valued by the Collector in the manner provided by clause (a)

summarily valued by the Collector in the manner provided by clause (a) of section 27, the annual value of any portion of such land which is comprised within a tenure subordinate to such estate or tenure shall be determined according to the following rules:—

(1) When the subordinate tenure comprises the whole of the estate or superior tenure, the annual value of the subordinate tenure shall be taken to be the same as that of the estate or superior tenure.

*Example.*—An estate paying a revenue of Rs. 80 is summarily valued by the Collector under clause (a) of section 27 at Rs. 200. The whole estate is let in *patm* for a rent of Rs. 120. The annual value of the *patmi* tenure will be Rs. 200.

(2) When the subordinate tenure comprises a part only of the land constituting the estate or superior tenure—

- (a) the difference between the annual value of the estate or superior tenure, and the revenue or rent payable in respect of such estate or superior tenure, shall first be ascertained;
- (b) next, the ratio which such difference bears to such revenue or rent shall be ascertained;
- (c) then the amount which bears the same ratio to the rent payable in respect of the subordinate tenure shall be ascertained;
- (d) half of the amount so ascertained shall be added to the rent payable in respect of the subordinate tenure; and

the result shall be taken to be the annual value of the subordinate tenure.

#### of 1880.]

۰.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 30, 31.)

*Example A.*—An estate paying revenue of Rs. 60 is summarily valued by the Collector under clause (a) of section 27 at Rs. 100. A part only of the estate is let in *pathi* for a rent of Rs. 37-8.

The difference between the annual value of the estate (Rs. 100) and the revenue paid in respect of it (Rs. 60) is Rs. 40. This difference bears a ratio of two-thirds to this revenue (Rs. 60).

The amount which bears the same ratio (two-thirds) to the rent payable in respect of *patni* (Rs. 37-8) is Rs. 25;

add half of Rs. 25 to the rent payable in respect of the *patni* tenure, and the result (Rs. 37-8+Rs. 12-8=) Rs. 50 will be the annual value of the *patni* tenure.

*Example B.*—Within the *pathi* tenure paying a rent of Rs. 37-8 as in Example A, is a *darpathi* tenure paying a rent of Rs. 27.

The difference between the annual value of the *patni* tenur ascertained as above (Rs. 50) and the rent payable in respect of the *patni* (Rs. 37-8) is Rs. 12-8, which bears a '*ratio* of one-third to the said rent.

The amount which bears the same ratio (one-third) to the rent payable in respect of the *darpatni* (Rs. 27) is Rs. 9;

add half of Rs. 9 to the rent payable in respect of the *darpatni*, and the result (Rs. 27+Rs. 4-8=) Rs. 31-8 will be the annual value of the *darpatni* tenure.

30. When the land contained in any estate or tenure has been summarily valued according to a rate per acre, under clause (b) of section 27, or under section 28, the annual value of the land comprised in any subordinate tenure shall be taken at the same rate per acre as that of the estate or superior tenure.

31. The holder of any estate or tenure which has been summarily valued under section 27 or 28, may, within one month from the posting of the valuation-roll in respect thereof under section 35, lodge a return in the form is Schedule A contained in regard to such estate or tenure, and thereupon such return shall be deemed to be a return made as required by section 16 and shall be dealt with accordingly.

When such land may be valued according to rate per acre.

Holder of summarily valued estate or tenure may lodge return.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The word "*ratio*", in Example B, was substituted for the word "rate" by s. 3 and the Second Schedule of the Amending Act, 1903 (I of 1903).

[Ben. Act IX

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 32-35.)

Collector may value small estate or tenure by regular process. 32. Instead of proceeding to value any estate or tenure summarily under the provisions of section 27 or 28, the Collector may, if he thinks fit, cause a notice to be served in respect of any such estate or tenure in the Form No. I in Schedule B contained, or in the Form No. II in the said Schedule contained, as the case may be, and thereupon all the provisions of this Part shall apply in the same way as they would have applied if the annual Government revenue or rent payable in respect of such estate or tenure had exceeded one hundred rupees.

Lands used for Tea, Coffee or Cinchona.

Return of plantations, etc. 33. In the case of lands acquired under any rule issued by, or under the authority of, the Government for the sale, lease, grant or clearance of waste-lands, or held directly from Government, and used for the cultivation of tea, collec, or cinchona, the Collector shall, in lieu of the notice prescribed by section 16, cause a notice to be served calling on the holder of such lands to lodge, within two months of the service of such notice, a return in the form in Schedule C contained, giving the particulars in such form set forth; and the annual value of such lands shall be fixed at ten rupees in respect of every acre therein entered as cultivated, unless the Board of Revenue shall in any particular case prescribe a lower rate.

The provisions of sections 18 and 21 shall apply to all lands in respect of which a notice has been issued under this section.

Publication of Valuation-rolls and Duration of Valuations.

Valuationrolls to be prepared. 34. Whenever any valuation or re-valuation is made under this Part, the Collector shall cause to be prepared from the returns furnished to him and from the valuations made by him in accordance with this Act a valuation-roll of each estate within his district and of the tenures therein comprised, noting thereon for each estate the amount of revenue annually payable to Government on which the deduction specified in section 41 is to be calculated.

On the application of any holder of an estate or tenure or holding, and on payment of such copying fee as the Board of Revenue shall from time to time determine, the Collector shall cause to be furnished to such holder a copy or corrected copy of so much of any such returns, and of any such roll, as relates to the lands included within his estate, tenure or holding.

Publication of rolls. 35. On the completion of every roll prescribed under this Part, the Collector shall cause a copy thereof to be posted up at the *mal-cutcherry* of the estate to which such roll refers, and shall cause extract of such portions of any such roll as refer to any tenure to be posted up at the *mal-cutcherry* of such tenure:

of 1880.]

۶.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter II.—Valuation of Lands.—Sections 36, 37.)

Provided that, if no such *māl-cutcherry* be found, such roll and such extracts shall be posted up at some conspicuous places on the estate and tenures respectively to which they refer, and that, if such estate or tenure cannot be found, such roll and such extracts shall be posted at some conspicuous place in any village in which such estate or tenure is believed to be situate.

The person who is entrusted with the publication of any such return shall obtain an acknowledgment in writing signed by two persons who may be either respectable residents of the neighbourhood, or *chaukidars*, or other 'Iservants of the Government], to the effect that such return was duly published on the spot, and shall give in such acknowledgment to the Collector.

36. Except as otherwise in this Part expressly provided, every valuation and re-valuation made under this Chapter shall remain in force for the term of five years from the date fixed by the <sup>2</sup>[Board of Revenue] under section 12 as the date from which the cess leviable in pursuance thereof shall take effect, and thereafter, until another re-valuation and assessment in substitution thereof shall have been ordered and completed.

37. Nothing in section 36 contained shall be held to debar the Collector, with the sanction of the <sup>3</sup>Commissioner from making at any time any reduction which he may think fit in the valuation of any estate or tenure;

or from making a valuation of and assessing and levying cess under the rules laid down in this Part upon any estate or tenure which for any reason whatever has been omitted from the valuations and assessments for the time being in force, or which was not in existence when such valuation or assessment was made.

[37A-37-1.]—(Chapter IIA.)—Rep. by sec. 3 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1943 (Ben. Act XI of 1943). To be attested by two persons.

Valuation and revaluation to be in force for five years.

Collector may reduce valuation.

and may value and assess omitted and newlyformed estates and tenures.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words "Servants of the Crown" were originally substituted for the words "officers of Government" by para, 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937, and thereafter the word "Government" was substituted for the word "Crown" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>The word "Commissioner" was substituted for the words "Board of Revenue" for Western Bengal, by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910) and for Eastern Bengal, by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter III.—Rating and Levy of the Cesses.—Sections 38-40A.)

#### CHAPTER III.

#### Rating and Levy of the Cesses.

'38. The road cess for each year shall be assessed and levied in each district as provided in section 6, and (subject to the maximum rate in that section mentioned) at such rate as may be determined for such year by the District Board.

39. The public works cess for each year shall be assessed and levied in each district as provided in section 6, and subject to the maximum rate in that section mentioned, at such rate as the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may determine for such year.

40. When the rate of road cess and public works cess to be levied in any district shall have been determined for any year and published in the  ${}^{3}[Official Gazette] {}^{4*}$  \* \* \* , the Collector of the district shall cause the rate so determined to be published by affixing a notification in some conspicuous place in the office of the said Collector, in every Civil Court, in every police-station, and in the office of every Subdivisional Officer within the district, and

shall cause such rate to be proclaimed by beat of drum throughout the district, and

shall cause to be served on the holder of every estate within the district a notice showing the amount of road cess and public works cess payable in respect of his estate, and specifying the date from which such road cess and public works cess will take effect:

Provided that it shall not be necessary to serve such notice, when no change has been made in the valuation of the estate or in the rate of road cess or public works cess since the issue of the last notice under this section.

Recovery of cess from tenores in Government estates. <sup>3</sup>40A. Notwithstanding anything in the definitions of "estate" and "tenure" in section 4 or elsewhere in this Act contained, the Board of Revenue may direct that any land (other than the holding of a cultivating raiyat) of which the rent or revenue is payable directly to the Government as proprietor thereof shall, for the purposes of this Part, be deemed to be a tenure and not an estate, and that the Government shall be deemed to be the holder of the estate within which such tenure is included, and thereupon the Collector may recover any sum payable from such tenure under the provisions of this Act, in the same manner and under the same penalties as if the same were arrears of rent or revenue due to him.

See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

Rate at which road cess shall be levied, how to be fixed.

э.

Rate at which public works cess shall be levied, how to be fixed.

Notice showing amount of cess payable to be served on *zamindars*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Section 38 was substituted for the original section 38 by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

<sup>&</sup>quot;See foot-note 2 on page 390, ante.

<sup>&</sup>quot;The words "as provided in section 155" were omitted by the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Section 40A was inserted by s. 4 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act II of 1881).

of 1880.]

Ben. Act VI

of 1870.

э,

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter III.—Rating and Levy of the Cesses.—Section 41.)

- 41. Except as otherwise in this Act provided,—
  - (1) every holder of an estate shall yearly pay to the Collector the entire amount of the road cess and public works cess calculated on the annual value of the lands comprised in such estate, at the rate or rates which may have been determined for such cesses respectively for the year as in this Act provided, less a deduction to be calculated at onehalf of the said rates for every rupee of the revenue entered in the valuation-roll of such estate as payable in respect thereof;
  - (2) every holder of a tenure shall yearly pay to the holder of the estate or tenure within which the land held by him is included the entire amount of the road cess and public works cess calculated on the annual value of the land comprised in his tenure at the rate or rates which may have been determined for such cesses respectively for the year as in this Act provided less a deduction to be calculated at onehalf of the said rates for every rupee of the rent payable by him for such tenure;
  - (3) every cultivating raiyat shall pay to the person to whom his rent is payable one-half of the said road cess and public works cess calculated at the said rate or rates respectively upon the rent payable by him, or upon the annual value ascertained under the provisions of section 24 or 25 of the land held by him.

<sup>1</sup>Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore in this section contained, all persons to whom chaukidari chakran lands have been transferred under Part II of the Village Chaukidari Act, 1870, or the heirs or assigns of such persons, shall yearly pay to the Collector the entire amount of the road cess and public works cess calculated on the annual value of such lands at the rate or rates which may have been determined for such cesses respectively for the year as in this Act provided, less a deduction to be calculated at onehalf of the said rate or rates for every rupee of the assessment approved under the said Part as payable in respect of such lands.

Mode of payment of road cess and public works cess by holder of estate:

by holder of tenure;

by cultivating raiyar:

by holders of chaukidari chakron lands.

401

ł

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This paragraph was added to s. 41, for Western Bengal, by s. 9 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910).

## The Calcutta Cfranklavs 801, 1880.

Ben Act IX

į

Ben. Act V of 1897.

## (Part II.-Mode of Assessment Chapter III.-Rating and Levy of the Cesses .- Sections 42, 43.)

Time of payment by holder of an estate:

by tenureholder and raiyat.

Distribution of valuation in case of partition.

be made good by the said grantees, and in the event of any suit being institled TipuiFisety, balder Ebergersterner ner versterlage stall bernter anners nəf unad case randı publik neveka gesa idus davih imi ini aquah üzsi alayem barı rtize is a voral day a clither things an is consport an on particular the station bi850 thoso it appealant an Account cland beings in it charge in the pay in bott of radong papado inundar a kinespoind on a first estas of a possible comportation of a possible composition of the abayables in alle and all same then in the payment of suchrowinded always that, if the said grantees fail to settle such suit or to indemnify the said Corporation as is hereinbefore provided, it shall be law (A) for the said Corporation as is hereinbefore provided, it shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said Corporation of the said shall be law (A) for the said shal croad rease each complice warks case dependent and show the states of th similification up to pair marking out the bar a condarge state built of the the purpose appointed by Sangrouder of the liboard on Revolute of payment, and with all expenses which they may be put to, shall be recoverable as a debi from the said granted of a rent-paying tenure and every cultivating raiyat shall pay the amount of road cess and public works cess due by hint in idealmonustmetheoretportporteniog the insultaneoretport payable shidanaeleon the liding on innather or birds of much to now or regard part thereof for the space of six calendar months (such discontinuance not being recided that by careen in which ever a direct of deal pure gran lees be itematicitationagreforence no opporation characteristication dys before the reactof thesaichgroutaespunteenfowhithe trainpayablepattaltemmesholderontinue;ht asthillipsaidigramansaholl and to dec Galpatsian wake ose of such ry ministi and of the making and a four hour day shid so all any high the spaise tappointed by a prover been private provided that we will have a private of the Engineer of the said Corporation as to such cost shall be conclusive.

43. In case of partition of an estate being effected under <sup>4</sup>[the Estates Partition Act, 1297], of any similar Act, and Corporation before opening and breaking up the soil and pavement of any street or bridge and while such valuation remains in force, the total valuation of the under clause 10 of these presents deposit in an approved bank in Calcutta in right and shall be constructed by the sum of the sum in the name of the said corporation the sum of the sum in the shall be constructed by the sum of the sum of the sum in the shall be constructed by the sum of erence and several processing of the control of opproving the proving the states show the purposes of the states of the uptabeholothapterginabestatesattegitatulity of they inessofut cospecty of each snowlowed field termediating construction difficult information billing you they saidssumespelacoraidynomersballubn reorditerbianelicesand grantees, and, subject as next hereinafter mentioned, be paid to them as the same shall accrue the separate liability shall take effect from the same date as the separate liability of the newly-formed estates respectively in respect of Provided nevertheless that the said Corporation shall be entitled to land-revenue the sum so deposited or the interest accruing on the said sum Trenovesror and figuthe proceeds we show a the chorda denote spating only be Lossel manufichy shappliche Brand Coss (Amend ment No. 3) Actuals (BBR Actual St.). The Bengal Land Revenue Sales Act. 1839.

These words were supstituted for the word "Lieutonapt Governor" by the Bengal Dechtralization Act, 1913 [Bell, Act, Vier 1995] ession meleby granica the said grantees wills bay into conduct and station of a the second and th htstiana Repuspecificiti siahista in the are to be and the series if the series in the series of the series of the series of the series with the series of the series of the series with the series of the series of the series with the series of t

(Ben Act II of 1881) See 1001-hote 2 on page 365, ante.

## The Caldina Frankiay 880, 1880.

#### off **1880,**]

# (Part II.—Mode of Assession Contended of the Cesses.—Section 44.)

Provided also that it shall not be lawful for the said other parties to billhetakooaniumedpareschibed the sectionss34nged 35 shallahe goliuwed livitonever a redistribution of the valuation is made in consequence of a parphionicasementioned in like is a section less shall offer any obstruction or fail to afford reasonable facilities, to enable the said parties to whom any Concession When a recentled to a real of ration is the real of inaspapened-aseparation and a star Shafet 8382 a prounder restion 670 kaf Bengal And Mill of dis76 him any dimilar da wafter the dimuths ingita rforcenfortcheensylulation olighte opening and matheatining object churcharate fauctheney most and besulation, the regard further and that ralism OPBall cess and public works cess under this Act, to all the advantages of sparate, liability, enjoyed by bin under the said Acts Andal 459 mand Rangel Asis Milleli barkie in taggad getbe parater in indescalization of cavery gage disheld be any induce is sparata assessments and not they insue of oppartal courses any and the station of the date main which courses any an account of the service of the servic shallhakpstimesin senace of the damand of Gavernee at an way are face of the 182d, Whenevercante work offertate agona is become a first the universion relation restation in a dimethylic purchased with a dimension for converse shallestoruballuistum a novisiti out the halders of the sparases veralizing anapart chirchich there gound and do be keptor parately, informing shath that, buildsstany, objection is proferred to the Gollector Wilhio common th of the service of such notice, the amount of the cesses which the whole of the said Corporation shall hereafter after the level of any street estate is hable to pay according to the cay by his algorithm with unfortzet Rate an which such separate accounts were even had be account on the account of t such adopted and a constrained of the mount of the present and the constraints of the con Sarathe very many use subjects the use basis and a separate accounts as being, liable Such nation aball specify such proportionate 33994 filerfere as little as possible with the safe and convenient working of the Wild Iran wush objection becase isored within the impropenting. such propagionate aground shall be the amount of the cesses for which the respective balders of such reneral shares are on marily kieblenes surplianed and strained worked swill such \$58% subingta how avenata the arnerabiospanaiouinysofithaipoldensiof the annual are manuaring an scryioucl 4 sectors ald be cubic the particulate of the needed by the GD accounts of (dismuchsibators an appebint excrementariog) ded drise original 98 and 39 bit thispantikon Commission of impechal-general meeting) shall have power at all unerfranmakensuble caexiahan despierence dats athereed; inurbea appassedenie seggende which the sold attack and a percenting is the and state wall all the second states of the second shares in respect of which backesperated is countering opendemy properties adding a linest of the said Reparation Norperson other than the grantees, or persons

Procedure to be followed when there is a partition,

Effect of opening separate account under Act XI of 1859 or Bengal Act VII of 1876.

S,

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter III.—Rating and Levy of the Cesses.—Section 45.)

not being inconsistent with this Act, as may be issued by the Board of Revenue; and the holders of such several shares shall be primarily liable as aforesaid for the payment of the amount of the cesses so apportioned on their shares repectively.

<sup>1</sup>(4a) Whenever a recorded sharer of a joint revenue-paying estate applies to the Collector, under section 10 or section 11 of Act XI of 1859<sup>2</sup> or section 70 of Bengal Act VII of 1876<sup>3</sup>, for the opening of a separate account of the landrevenue payable by him, he may include in his application a request for the simultaneous opening of a separate account of the road cess and public works cess payable by him.

<sup>1</sup>(4b) The Collector may thereupon issue a notice to each of the several sharers of such estate, simultaneously with the notice issued under any of the aforesaid sections, informing him that, unless any objection is preferred to the Collector within six weeks of the service of the notice, the amount of the cesses which the whole estate is liable to pay will, from the date on which such separate account is opened, be apportioned among such sharers severally, in proportion to the amount of Government revenue for the payment of which each share is entered in the separate account as being liable.

(5) Whenever the separate account of the revenue payable in respect of any share or portion of an estate, as mentioned in clause (1) of this section, shall be closed, the provisions of this section shall cease to have effect in respect of such share.

<sup>5</sup>45. (1) A rebate of five *per centum* of the amount payable as an instalment of road cess and public works cess under Chapter III, IV or VIIA in respect of any estate or tenure, or of the interest of a cultivating *raiyat* shall be allowed at the time of payment:

<sup>1</sup>These sub-sections (4a) and (4b) were inserted, for Western Bengal, by s. 10 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben, Act IV of 1910).

The Bengal Land Revenue Sales Act, 1859.

The Land Registration Act, 1876.

'Sub-section (5) was added by s. 7 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act 11 of 1881).

<sup>3</sup>Section 45-was substituted for the original section 45 by s. 4 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act XI of 1934).

Effect of payment or nonpayment of cess on or before due date.

۶,

of 1880.]

VIII of 1885.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter III.—Rating and Levy of the Cesses.—Section 46.)

Provided that-

- (a) the instalment is paid in full on or before the due date, and
- (b) the annual cess payable in respect of the estate, tenure or interest amounts to fifty rupces or more.

Explanation.—The word "estate" as used in this sub-section means, in the case of a payment made in respect of the share or portion of an estate for which a separate account referred to in section 44 has been opened, the share or portion in respect of which the payment is made.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in Schedule III to the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, if any instalment of road cess or public works cess or part thereof payable to the Collector shall not be paid within thirty days from the date on which the same becomes due, the amount of such instalment or part thereof may be recovered at any time within six years after it becomes due, with interest at the rate of '[six and a quarter] per centum per annum calculated from the date on which such instalment became due with all costs of recovering the same:

2\* \* \* \*

(3) The provisions of sub-section (1) shall not apply to any amount payable as road cess and public works cess in respect of any lands referred to in section 33 or sub-section (4) of section 107D.

46. (1) In any district to which the '[Board of Revenue] may specially order that the provisions of this section shall be extended, it shall be lawful for the Collector to keep a separate account in respect of the amount of cesses payable and paid by any holder of a revenue-free estate who is recorded in Part I of the Collector's general register of revenue-free lands as proprietor or manager of any specified share or interest in any revenue-free property.

(2) Such separate account shall be opened and kept under such rules as to the levy of fees and other matters, and subject to such conditions and in such manner, as the Board of Revenue may from time to time prescribe; "[and the Collector, if he becomes aware that any separate account opened under sub-section (1) does not represent existing facts, may, after service of a notice on the recorded proprietor or manager, and after hearing any objection which may be preferred within six weeks of such service, close the account.]

With permission of the Board of Revenue, Collector may keep separate account of cesses payable by registered holders of revenue free estars.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>These words were substituted for the words "twelve and a half" by s. 2 and the Schedule of the Bengal Rates of Interest Act, 1939 (Ben. Act III of 1939).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>The proviso to sub-section (2) beginning with "Provided that" and ending with "recovering the same." was omitted, *ibid*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>These words, brackets and figure were substituted for the words "and the Board of Revenue may at any time order that any separate account which has been so opened shall be closed from such time as they may direct, and no longer kept as a separate account." For Western Bengal by the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and for Eastern Bengal by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915),

[Ben. Act IX

ŝ

ï

----

i

i

## (Part II.-Mode of Assessment.-Chapter III.-Rating and Levy of the Cesses.—Sections 47-49.)

(3) As long as any separate account shall remain open as provided in the [preceding sub-section], and no longer, the joint liability of the holders of such revenue-free estate for payment of the entire amount payable in respect of such estate shall cease; and the Collector shall recover the amount of cess or other demand due in respect of each share or interest for which an account has been so separately kept from the holder or holders of such share or interest only; and, if the Collector shall think fit to proceed under section 99, he shall take action under that section against the share or interest only in respect of which the sum demanded is due and the rents thereof.

Every holder of an estate or tenure to whom any sum may be 47. payable under the provisions of this Act may recover the same with interest at the rate of 2[six and a quarter] per centum per annum in the same manner and under the same penalties as if the same were arrears of rent due to him.

Any shareholder in an estate or tenure who may have paid the road cess or public works cess payable in respect of such estate, tenure or any part thereof in excess of the amount proportionate to his own interest in such estate or tenure, may recover from his co-sharers such sums as he may have paid on account of their respective shares and interest, in the same manner and under similar penalties, or may take credit for such sums in any adjustment of accounts between himself and his co-sharers.

49. Wherever any shareholder in an estate who is recorded in the general register of revenue-paying and revenue-free lands maintained by the Collector,

or whenever any shareholder in an estate the extent of whose share or interest in such estate is recorded in any other register kept up by the Collector of lands paying revenue or rent to the Collector direct,

shall have paid the road cess or public works cess payable in respect of such estate, or any part thereof in excess of the amount proportionate to his own interest in such estate,

<sup>3</sup>he may, within '[six weeks] of such payment being made, move the Collector to make a certificate as provided by any law for the time being in force for the recovery of public demands, specifying the amount which has been paid in by such shareholder as cess in respect of the recorded share or interest of any other shareholder in the estate;

<sup>3</sup>he may, with *fifteen days* of such payment being made, move the Collector to make a certificate as provided by any law for the time being in force for the recovery of public demands, specifying the amount which has been paid in by such shareholder as cess in respect of the recorded share or interest of any other shareholder in the estate;

the clause as in force in Western Bengal and in Eastern Bengal, respectively, lies in the words printed in italics. \*These words were substituted for the words "fifteen days" for Western Bengal, by s. 12 of

the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910).

٦.

Recovery by holders of estates or tenures.

Recovery նատ co-sharerholders.

Recovery by recorded share holders from their co-sharers by certificate process.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;These words were substituted for the words "preceding clause" by s. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939). See foot-note 1 on page 405, ante. <sup>3</sup>This clause of section 49 is in force in this form in Western Bengal. The only difference in

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>This clause of section 49 is in force in this form in Eastern Bengal.

#### The Calentic Transport ar 880c1, 1880.

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation and Assessment of Lands Ileid Reactive free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Section 50.)

double line and Rs. 2,000 per annum per mile of single line; from the begingingereubenenibhochreenst anabe white anthe strange sube cerantales, and Short comment of an ile of the black of the black of the contract of the contr waaanobetrenifeooleinales huisuleas yeepsanutius et yee yon cee bijau ee issuber and int hamseproteeelling san and the raken the rether by the collector as intrue secons in the raken of the collector as intrue secons in the raken of the collector mile of singkolinedramithebeeinsurgiptikeseighteenkulletterancateheisyseen the control of the transformation of the transforme to the transforme to the transformer draie ging soften ibweig wir strevel writting is stall ge bakene ap the matalice of in some monous in the certainer share be taken at the instance of a single the some monous in the certainer share be and the instance of a single has been at the instance of a single has a share a share a share a single has a Whiche the result will be a short will be the set of the the applicant for the terrificate would recover from such person in a CiviPCouldeds absing settuately inequalities in a second state of the second setting setting and the second setting setting and the second setting setting and the second setting sett uninteness in the nisthfar this is on the ingition of the Convertent the less probable studied foles and objection oper Cottletto grange is is balled included sinchriefter and interventhe application and the remedy in the Civil Court.

18. If the said rent or any paper hereof shall not be paid on due date, the said grantees shall be hable to pay interest thereon at the rate of eigNalpatien and Assessment of Landsheld Rentifiery and t.

Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof. 19. In consideration of the premises the Corporation shall allow to 60 doubled and which the playtest where the corporation shall allow to 60 doubled and where the playtest where the corporation shall allow to 60 doubled and where the playtest where the playtest and the playtest of the playtest o

caFhishoft the subilized factor words with it south the first function of the subilized factor of the subility of the subilized factor of the subility 
2This froveowed and they 36.5(2)!"(bid.)

Rent-free lands in what estates or tenures to be included for the purposes of this Act,

of 1880.]

۰.

[Ben. Act IX

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 51-52.)

51. Every holder of an estate or tenure who is required by this Act to submit a return in the form in Schedule A contained shall be bound to enter in such return all lands of the nature of those specified in section 50 according to the tenor thereof; and shall be bound to pay road cess and public works cess on the annual value of such lands at one-half of the rates fixed under this Act for the levy of such cesses respectively in the district generally for the year.

<sup>1</sup>51A. (1) Every owner, holder or occupier of any rent-free land shall be bound to give on demand to the Collector or to the holder of the estate or tenure within which such land is, for the purposes of this Act, included or to his authorised agent all information in his possession regarding the area, situation and description of the land and the names and addresses of all persons owning, holding or occupying it as may be reasonably required for the purpose of the collection or recovery of the cess due on such land.

(2) If any such owner, holder or occupier of rent-free land fails without reasonable excuse to comply with such demand within three months after receiving the same, he shall be liable to a fine not exceeding one hundred rupees, and the provisions of sub-sections (3) to (7) of section 58 of the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, shall, so far as may be, apply to the imposition and recovery of the fine.

(3) The Collector may, either on the application of the holder of the estate or tenure within which such rent-free land is included, or of his own motion, summon the owner, holder or occupier of any rent-free land to furnish him with the information referred to in sub-section (1) and such owner, holder or occupier shall furnish such information so far as the same may be in his possession.

(4) For the purpose of sub-section (3) the Collector shall have power to summon, and enforce the attendance of, witnesses, and compel the production of documents, in the same manner as is provided in the case of a Court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908.

52. Whenever any lands held rent-free shall have been included in the return of any estate or tenure as provided in the last preceding section, the Collector shall, on publication of the valuation-roll of such estate or tenure as provided in section 35, cause to be published a notice in the form in Schedule D contained, to which notice shall be annexed such extracts from the valuation-roll of such estate or tenure as relate to such lands.

Holders of estates and tenures bound to return centfree lands and to pay cess at half rates for such lands included therein.

Information regarding rent-free lands.

Notice and

extracts of

valuationroll to be

published by

Collector in respect of

such rent-

free lands.

the

VIII of 1885.

Act V of 1908.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Section 51A was inserted by s. 6 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act X1 of 1934).

÷ ;;;

of 1880,]

۶,

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 52A, 53.)

Such publication may be lawfully made by affixing one copy of such notice and extracts at some conspicuous place in every village within which any such lands are situate,

by depositing another copy of the same at any police-station, registration-office or other Government office in the neighbourhood for the inspection of all concerned.

and by proclamation as herein next provided.

The proclamation shall be made by beat of drum throughout every such village, and shall be to the effect that such extracts have been so affixed and deposited, and that the owners and holders of such lands are required to inform themselves, by inspection of such extracts of the valuation put upon their lands, and to pay yearly to the holder of the estate or tenure in the return of which such lands are included the cessess which shall be payable in respect of such lands under the provisions of this Act.

<sup>1</sup>52A. Whenever any notice has been duly published under section 52, the Collector shall sign a certificate to that effect, and such certificate shall be conclusive proof that the publication has been duly made.

53. Within a reasonable time not exceeding thirty days after the issue of any process for the recovery of any sum due from him as cess under this chapter, the owner, holder or occupier of any such land may make before the Collector an objection to the valuation of his land as entered in the valuation-roll so published, and on such objection being made the Collector shall by such ways and means as to him shall seem expedient, ascertain and fix the annual value of the land in the possession of such owner, holder or occupier, and may alter such roll accordingly, and shall give notice of any such alteration to the holder of the estate or tenure to which such roll relates:

Provided that nothing in this section shall be taken to authorize the Collector to alter any return so as to show any area of land as held rentfree which the maker of such return can show to be accounted for by him in the return as rent-paying land. Certificate of publication of notices under section 52. L

ł

.....

ł

Holder of rent-free land may object to valuation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Section 52A was inserted, for Western Bengal, by s. 13 of the Bengal Cess (Amendmeat) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910). This section was extended to the districts in the Chinagong, Rajshahi and Dacca Divisions of the Bengal Presidency by s. 2 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1932 (Ben. Act XIV of 1932).

#### TITHE GeSA ACT 88880.

## illen: Aet ilX

-

get.

13

## (Part II.—Mode of Assessmenter Rechapter IV.—Valuation Valuetto Assasses was the land straid de al classes and Manuel Ratherby's and Recovery of Grass Immogradial Progfer (Section 54.)

Section. Notice to by

certain cases.

liolders 72A. estate in

Notice Untherfollowing cases, that is to say:-

(Western 1) Bencherigt veraltation valuation of reavaluation takes effect in any district or part of a district;

73. When p(2) expenses on this frage of the road cess or of

- 74. When properbe publicity or is the state of t
- 75. If return notafuvhickesuch insorvers lovid bitcheepreakding losaio and
- 76. Valuation3)whatenevernilevanesfizzenequeof Bossible Revenue] under
- 77. Cost of valuation from top any the for a set of the cesses by
- 78. Notice of valuation of rent-free land are changed,
- 79.
- Notice of vitbility of rent-free land are changed, Valuations under this chapter to be annual. Declaration of every state of rent shall cause a notice to be published in Effect of acceptance for context shall cause a notice to be published in Effect of acceptance for context shall cause a notice to be published in Effect of acceptance for context shall cause a notice to be published in every village in which any such lands are situate, informing all concerned Nonce of rate of cost and the of period of such cesses respectively; and requiring every owner and holder of any such land of which the cesses How distributed when property in different of the published in pay the Determination of proportion of propins. When holders holders are indicated to the pay the Determination of proportion of propins. When holders are indicated to be published in pay the Determination of proportion of propins. When holders are indicated to be published in pay the Determination of proportion of propins. When holders are a site of the set of the are payable to the person who causes the notice to be published in pay the Determination of proportion of propins. When holders are it fails due, until a similar Set of notices phater this chapter notice of change of the amount shall be given.
- 80.
- 81.
- 82.
- 83.
- 84.

Such notice shall contain the following lifermation in respect of each tonure and holding of rent-free land which is entered separately in the Collector's Valuation roll.

- Collectors in [Oriesa and] Midnapore may order certain revenue-free estates to be (1) astatement of the quantity or (1) a specification of the land in annexed to other estates for purposes of payment of cess. Notice to be given to holder of estate to which such revenue-free estate is annexed. There is the collector's are payable; Notice to be given to holder of revenue-free estate. Cesses payable by holder of revenue-free estate in such instalments as Board of 85.
- 86.
- 87.
- 88.
- Revenue may direct (2) the name of the owner, holder or occupier of such lands if Notices to be served. Collector may revoke orders passed under section 85. 89.
- 90.
  - (3) the annual value of such land as entered in the Collector's valuation-roll; CHAPTER VII.
  - (4) the rate on each rupsolite the annual value which has been fixed under the Act for the levy of the road cess and public Collector may engaged for the levy of the road cess and public (Western Bengal) Payment of commission to tahsildars.
- 91. 91A,
  - Hole Be op TOWNER OF the iffering payable in respect of each tenure or 92
  - Contribution Contribution Contribution 93.
  - 94. False returns.

  - 97. opposis col service.

NUtrioskauso (f) is referre to this to me in Eastern Beggal.

48))

## Bengal Actol X80f 1880

of 1880.]

## [THE CESS ACT, 1880.]

(Part II.--Mode of Assessment,-Chapter IV.--Valuation and Assessment of Lands field Rent free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 55-57.)

#### Preamble.

1.

Section.

(6) the dates fixed by the [Board of Revenue] under section 57

- for the payment of each instalment, together with the amount Short (Commencement.) Repealed.
- Extent. 2. Pro5550, Publication of the notice above-mentioned may be lawfully pade by aftering and same of the same as some conspicuous place in every
- villageoin which any such land is situate; 3.
- 4. Interpretensional and the copy thereof to be available for general inspection at any mal-cutcherry of the eatate or tenure in which such land is included, or at any other convenient place in the neighbourhood;

## and by proclamation as herein next provided.

The proclamonsifisitand Applications and the fit of the state of the s

- village, and shall be to the effect that such notice has been so affixed and
- cess. 5. All immovable property to be liable to a road cess and public works so deposited that it is open to inspection at the mai-cutcherry or other
- 6.
- Cesses how to be assessed. Cesses how to be assessed, and that every owner and holder of Public revenues not liable for more road cess than has been paid to Collector by rent-free land is required to inform himself of the contents of such notice persons liable. 7.
- and to pay the amount of the cesses due by him accordingly. 8.
- 9. Application of proceeds of road cess.
- Apprentation of the second of 10.
- specien 52, and in cases in which publication of the notice mentioned in 11. section 54 is required, after publication of such notice, and not otherwise, every owner and holder of any reflARCE land included in such extracts, and every person in receipt of the tents and profits or in possession and enjoyment of such land, shall be bound to pay year by year to the holder of the estate or tenure in the return of which such land has been included the amount of the road cesy and public works which may thereafter become due to such holder, calculated on the annual value of such land
- 12. aBentel of iR SEER YEX MARS, Old on Saly Dires and us value Willoh may have
- behonetimined by the Collection in the section sy at the start are collector for 13.
- which had been fixed under this Act for the levy of such cesses Proclamation to make return of lands to be issued. respectively in the district generally for the year. Publication of proclamation. 14.
- 15.
- Re-valuation may be of particular estates or tenures only. 57. The payment of the cesses for each year by the holder of any land Notice to loage returns. 16.
- which is held ten free shall be made by two equal instalments, or in one 17.
- paymani, proning by an aday with hall be for that purpose fixed by the 18.
- "Roathpf8eenuelvered till return is made. 19.
- No rent to be recovered for land, etc., not mentioned in return. 20. Profide foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

Mode of publication.

Owner of rent-free land bound to pay cess at full rate.

Instalments to be fixed by Board of Revenue.

 $e^{-2}$ 

[Ben. Act IX

VIII of

I

1885.

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.--Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Puyment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 57A-60.)

<sup>1</sup>57A. (1) The provisions of section 54 of the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, regarding payment or tender of rent at the landlord's village office or other convenient place or by postal money-order shall apply to the payment or tender of cess by the owner, holder or occupier of rent-free land, as if the person to whom the same is payable under this Act is his landlord.

(2) The provisions of section 56 of the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, regarding the grant of rent-receipts shall apply to the payment of cess by the owner, holder or occupier of rent-free land as if the person to whom the cess is payable under this Act is his landlord.

58. When an instalment of the cesses due on any rent-free land is not paid <sup>2</sup>[or tendered] to the holder of the estate or tenure to whom it is due within one month of the date on which such instalment is payable, such holder shall be entitled to recover a sum equal to double the amount of such instalment due to him under sections 56 and 57, with interest on such sum calculated at the rate of <sup>3</sup>[six and a quarter] per centum per amum from the date on which such instalment was payable, and with all costs of suit:

Provided that such holder shall have paid to the Collector all sums due to such Collector up to date in respect of road cess and public works cess, and not otherwise.

59. If the holder of any estate or tenure shall have omitted to enter in his return (whether such return was made under Bengal Act X of 1871<sup>4</sup>, or under this Act) any rent-free land which he was bound to enter in such return, such holder may at any time after the passing of this Act give in to the Collector a supplementary return showing the necessary particulars in respect of the land so omitted in the form given in Part IV of Schedule A, and shall thereupon pay to the Collector the amount of the cesses which would have been payable by him to such Collector in respect of such land for the three years next preceding, or for any shorter period which may have elapsed since the estate or tenure was last valued.

60. Such supplementary return shall to all intents and purposes have the same effect as a return duly made under the provisions of section 51; and sections 51 to 56 (both inclusive) shall be applicable to and in respect of any rent-free land included in such supplementary return.

ی Place of payment or lender of cess,

If instalments not paid within a month, double the aunount may be recovered.

Holders of estates, etc., may send in supplementary returns in respect of rent-free lands.

Effect of supplementary returns.

Section 57A was inserted by s, 7 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben, Act XI of 1934).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>These words were inserted by s. 8, *ibid*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 405, ante.

<sup>&</sup>quot;Ben. Act X of 1871 has been repealed by this Act-see, s. 3, ante.

of 1880.]

 $\cdot$ 

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 61-64.)

61. The provisions of section 57 and 58 shall be applicable to every amount which, as provided in section 56, may become payable by the owner and holder of any such rent-free land to the holder of any such estate or tenure after the fulfilment of the requirements in sections 52, 53 and 54 contained.

62. The provisions of section 58 shall not be applicable to any such amount which may have become so payable under the provisions of 1\* \* \* this Act before the fulfulment of the requirements of the sections 52, 53 and 54; but, when any instalment of cess which may have become payable before the fulfilment of such requirements has not been paid to the holder of such estate or tenure on the date on which such instalment was payable, the holder of such estate or tenure may recover the amount of such instalment, together with interest at the rate of <sup>3</sup>[six and a quarter] per centum per annum on such amount, and with all costs of suit:

Provided that no holder of an estate or tenure shall recover any amount under the provisions of this section unless he has paid to the Collector all sums which became payable by him to such Collector on account of road cess and public works cess at any date within the year in which the amount sought to be recovered became payable to such holder of an estate or tenure.

63. As soon as the said requirements shall have been fulfilled in respect of any such land which is included in any such supplementary return, every owner and holder of such land and every person in receipt of the rents and profits, or in possession and enjoyment of such land, shall be bound to pay the amount of the road cess and public works cess which may thereafter become due on such land to the holder of the estate or tenure, in the supplementary return of which such land has been included. Sections 56 and 57 and 58 shall be applicable to the cesses so payable.

64. (1) Every holder of an estate or tenure who has included any rent-free lands in any return made to the Collector in respect of his estate or tenure under the provisions of the Bengal Act X of  $1871^3$  and has paid to the Collector any cess payable under the said Act, or under the Bengal Act II of  $1877^3$  in respect of the said rent-free lands, may at any time after the commencement of this Act give in to such Collector an additional return in the form given in Part IV of Schedule A.

<sup>2</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 405, ante.

· ·

Section 58 not applicable to such amounts until sections 52, 53 and 54 are complied with.

Owner of rent-free land liable to pay cess in future.

Additional return of rent-free land entered in return under Bengal Act X of 1871 may be made.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words and figures "Bengal Act X of 1871, or of' were repealed by s. 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act. 1938 (Ben, Act I of 1939).

Bengal Acts X of 1871 and IJ of 1877 have been repeated by this Act-see s. 3, ante.

# DEBen Acti X

# (Part II.-Mader of Assessment of Chapter JV.--- Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and of a cessforemeet. Servillion, Panti fer and manufations of AB vincial

Additional return to be deemed supplementary return.

Proviso.

Holders of restates etc. how to recover from holders of fell-free Acı.

Interpretationclause.

"Annual value of land, etc.":

Owner, holder or occupier of rent-free lands may be sued. Decree against occupier taniamount to decree against owner.

public works) may be in force on the date of the commencement of this Act. provide worksy thay be in force on the date of the commencement of this Act. (2) Such additional return shall be deemed to be a supplementary if the instance of section 59 and from the date of the inclusion of any such lands in such additional return the same consequences, shall similar in the effect of contrary in the frequency of the context of a district of any such lands in such additional return the same consequences, shall similar in the effect of contrary in the frequencies of the context of a district of the force of the same rights and obligations accure to the Confector and in the obligation of such astale or tenure, and the same liabilities shall attach to interval of such estate or tenure, and the same liabilities shall attach to interval of such astale occuries of such lands as avoid be such as a such lands. the owner, holder and occupier of such lands, as would have attached to them respectively instruments contained shall be deemed to affect any interpretent of the property within the similar of the ordinary original jurisdiction of the High Court at Calcuttal, or within the limits of any <sup>s</sup>[municipality

under the Bengal Municipal Act, 1932] 64A. Bengal Municipal Act, 1932] Notwithstanding anything contained in Schedule III to the Benalt Til States Aver 1889 Almoval sone i bravino inclusion factorial Covertale બુજરાય મુખ્યત્વે કે આ ગામ આ hanomeriven of the may be tee were system nonlet to make be were not ા સાગારક બે સુદ્દારાક્વા ત્યારક વિશ્વ કે વ્યુપાલ સામે બુદ વાણા દિલ્લા કે સ્ટાન કરતાં જાય સાથ છે. આ પ્રાપ્ય પ્ર years from thy date of which such some became the first all officers and anyspropress by which the Annun Canight by geogram dibioners due for acomunit of the Top a Raps locable tenure look a solution of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939).

Providadschau, ilinnussuch cobiestion asnip reseltioned in use clience? has been made before the Collector, no proceedings shall be commenced, and no proceedings which have been commenced shall be continued, for according to find the second second the lands alwhick and the subject of ouchurbjentions until catch objection shall nhove the enslipped ad of by the **Gullheitquayable**, or, if no 7\* \* rent or rent which is payable, or, if no is actually payable, would, on a revenue or rent is actually payable, reased 64 Bic alrestration substration when the cover shall any such such such as the second of the second se where a between a solution of the participation of the property of the propert ion halders of the area to keep land in zero and the same of the second second second second second second second against the occupier thereof; and any decree obtained in such suit against any becupiter of such land shall have the same affect and had allowed by the "Litheren Sengewee by messeet of the execting wire such india de destruise info Indian Laws) Under, 1937, and Increation ine word "State" was substituted for the word "www.ac.ar holdar.glsuch land.and anterspect of the oale of such land in such exconteneous with sufficient brought and the descree given against such the covernment of India (Acapitation of India Laws) Order. 1937 owned of Order sufficient of the sufficient brought and the sufficient of personal web long willing the second and the Eleventh Schedule to, the Adaptation of Lander 1950.

These words and figures were substituted for the words and figures "first or second class' Scattizio dia A and 64 Boo Benjas Pr44 divide Bongals 7688 KAmen and monthly ElbA Sch 880 the Borist SSI produce to the second dry Arre Dean Bernea from the gash on which Ben. Act IX This Sto finite this for for second alor Verter D888 (stern Bengal

The second state with the second state of the

3844

Ben. Act XV 071830 1885.

"Annual value of land, etc.":

. f.

۰.,

# of 1880.)

•

:

Section.	(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation
98.	Dues and Assessment of Landed and premering and Payment and
. 99.,	Collector finay decover the source thereof Sections 65-67.)
100.	Collector's claim to have priority. 65. Whenever any occupier of land which is held rent-free by the Board of Revenue may invest any person with Collector's newers owner thereof shall have paid any sum as cess due in respect of such land owner thereof shall have paid any sum as cess due in respect of such land
101.	Collect of may de coale afformere to whom such cess is payable, such from rent.
102.	Accessive analysis of the sum so paid by him from the rent
103.	Gadarahere alter payable population owner of such land, until such sum
104.	Os duly appearable to Commissioner.
	(Western Bengal) Revision of orders by Collector, and control and supervision by Commitssioner and Board Board anything in this chapter contained, the Collector may at any time cause a notice as mentioned in section 16 to be served on (Eastern Bengal) Collector's proceedings subject to supervision of Commissioner and the holder of any rent-free land which he shall consider not to have been entered in the return of any estate or tenure in which such land ought to Board for the return of any estate or tenure in which such land ought to the served on the return of any estate or tenure in which such land ought to the served on the return of any estate or tenure in which such land ought to the served on the serv
106.	DEDITION UNIXY DESIGN the provisions of caption 51
107.	All rights in immovable property saved unless affected by this Act, Such notice shall require the holder of such land to lodge at the office
	of the said Collector a return in the form in Schedule A contained in respect of such land.
Vaturati	
which a	ion and revaluation of lands in the districtions of the chaptershift in respect of a 166 set of the subarance, build and such lands.
107A.	Appre Lightlities shall attach to the holder of such land as would have ensued
107 <b>B</b> .	and would have attached if such lands had constituted a revenue-free
107C.	estate. Cess-paying and cess-free lands.
107D.	Deta Herber Gollector has reason to believe that any land in respect of which
107E.	the determines to serve such notice has been included in the return of any
107F.	restate or tenure, he shall give notice of his intention to the holder of such Preliminary publication of division of district into units, acreage rate and classes of estate or tenure, and shall alter such return as may be requisite, and shall
107G.	Determination concerning the second state of t
	district, acreage rate and classes of cess-tree lands.
107H.	Rate 574 Wishen hirson oyborlowind commencement of this Act no notice has If no notice
107I.	Phoeparsairon characteristic and the officer of the Collector and if such holder a
107 <b>J</b> .	Hand has not been included in any extracts from the returns of estates and notify
107K.	denures published by the Collector under section 52 or other similar consistent of feellector.
107L.	denures published by the Collector under section .52 or other similar omission to Copies of or extracts from valuation-ruli, to be available on payment of feedlector. section, the holder of such rent-free land shall be bound within one month of the expiration of such year to give information of such omission to the
107M.	Payment pl cogether with a description of the said land, a specification of the
107N,	Perised of all sees with a description of the said hand, a specification of the
1070.	Proventourare continent in the statute, the mean mean map, and
	effecProvided that no holder of rent-free land who at any time after the
107P.	Particulation of the sub-breast if the shall so which and other wise
107Q.	Alternation of the anticepter of the station of the
107R.	Rules information to the Collector shall be liable to prosecution for omitting
107S.	Appriveries the provision of the states of t

38¦S

|. |. |.

÷

.

į

ł

-----

÷

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter IV.—Valuation and Assessment of Lands held Rent-free, and Payment and Recovery of Cess in respect thereof.—Sections 68-71.)

Collector thereupon may require such holder to make return,

э.

68. On receipt of such information, whether within the time prescribed or after the expiration thereof, the Collector may, by an order in writing, require such owner or holder to make a return of his land in the form in Schedule A contained, or, if the gross rental of such land does not exceed one hundred rupees, may order that such land shall be summarily valued under section 27 or section 28, and may proceed to make such valuation.

Order to have effect of notice.

Liability of such holder to pay arrears of cesses. 69. Every order made by a Collector under the last preceding section shall have the same effect and be followed by the same consequences as the issue of a notice by the Collector under section 66.

70. As soon as any rent-free land which had not previously been included in the valuation of any estate or tenure, has been valued by the Collector after the issue of a notice as provided in section 66, or after an order made under section 68, the holder of such land shall become liable to pay to the Collector the road cess and the public works cess due on such land, in accordance with such valuation, for the three years last preceding such valuation, at the full rates at which such cesses were respectively levied for each such year in the district generally, together with interest calculated at '[six and a quarter] per centum per annum on each instalment from the date on which such instalment would have been payable if such valuation had been in force.

Such holder is not liable to pay cesses except to Collector or his Deputy. 71. No owner or holder of rent-free land on whom a notice has been served by the Collector under section 66, or in respect of whose land, an order has been made by the Collector under section 68, shall be liable to have the land to which such notice or order refers included in any return of an estate or tenure, or to pay any amount as road cess or public works cess otherwise than to the Collector or to some person appointed by him in that behalf, unless, on a re-valuation of any estate or tenure being made, the Collector shall by an order in writing direct that for the future such land shall be included within such estate or tenure for the purposes of this Act;

and, upon such order being made, the provisions of this chapter, in so far as they are applicable, shall apply to the assessment and payment of road cess and public works cess in respect of such land.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 1 on page 405, ante.

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.—Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Sections 72, 72A.)

#### CHAPTER V.

#### Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.

72. On the commencement of this Act in any district and thereafter before the close of each year, the Collector of the district shall cause a notice to be served upon the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of every mine, quarry, tramway, railway and other immovable property not included within the provisions of Chapter II <sup>1\*</sup> \* \*; such notice shall be <sup>2</sup>[(in the case of all mines and quarries,) in Form No. I in Schedule E contained and in any other case, in Form No. II in the said Schedule contained,] and shall requeire such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier to lodge in the office of such Collector within two months a return <sup>3</sup>[(in the case of all mines and quarries, of the annual despatches from such mines and quarries,) and in the case of any other property, of the annual net profits of such other property,] calculated on the average <sup>4\*</sup> \* \* \* \* for the last three years for which accounts have been made up.

Such Collector may in his discretion extend the time allowed for lodging such return.

<sup>3</sup>72A. (1) Any owner, chief agent, manager or occupier who, without sufficient cause being shown to the satisfaction of the Collector, refuses oromits to lodge the required return in the office of the Collector within two months from the date of the service upon him of a notice under section 72, or within any extended time which may have been allowed

<sup>1</sup>The words and figure "and not being one of the tramways or railways mentioned in section 8" were repealed by s. 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act. 1938 (Ben. Act 1 of 1939).

<sup>2</sup>The words "in the case of coal mines, in Form No. 1 in Schedule E contained and in any other case, in Form No. 11 in the said Schedule contained" were originally substituted for the words "in the Form in Schedule E contained" by s. 4(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964) and thereafter, the words within the first brackets were substituted for the words "in the case of coal mines," by s. 4(a) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1984).

<sup>3</sup>The words "in the case of a coal mine, of the annual despatches from such coal mine, and in the case of any other property, of the annual net profits of such other property." were substituted for the words "of the net annual profits of such property" by s. 4(2) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964) and thereafter the words within the first brackets were substituted for the words "in the case of a coal mine, of the annual despatches from such coal mine," by s.4(b) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

'The words "of the annual net profits thereof' were omitted by s. 4(3) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964),

<sup>5</sup>Section 72A was inserted, for Western Bengal, by s. 15 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act: 1910 (Ben, Act IV of 1910). Notice to return profits,

Penalty for omitting to lodge a return.

[Ben. Act IX

÷

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.---Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Sections 73, 74.)

by the Collector for lodging such return, shall be liable to a fine which may extend to fifty rupees for every day after expiration of such time or extended time until such return is furnished, or until <sup>1</sup>[the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be, in respect of the property] in respect of which the notice has been served shall have been otherwise ascertained and determined by the Collector as hereinafter provided.

(2) The amount of such fine accruing due from time to time may be levied by the Collector as provided in section 98 or section 99, and the fact of an appeal against such fine being pending shall not avail to prevent the levy of any such fine pending the disposal of the appeal, unless the Commissioner otherwise directs.

(3) Whenever the amount levied in respect of any such fine exceeds five hundred rupees the Collector shall report the case specially to the Commissioner; and no further levy for such default shall be made otherwise than by authority of the Commissioner.

73. Whenever any property assessable under this chapter lies in two or more districts, the notice to furnish a return under section 72 shall be served on the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of such property by or through the Collector of the district in which such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier may reside or have his chief place of business, and one return for the whole of such property shall suffice.

<sup>2</sup>74. Whenever any property assessable under this chapter lies partly within and partly outside the <sup>3</sup>[State], the return furnished as required by section 72 shall state the <sup>4</sup>(total annual despatches or the total annual net profits, as the case may be, claculated as aforesaid, in respect of the whole of such property and also the portion of such annual despatches or annual profits, as the case may be, which may reasonably be calculated to relate to the portion of such property situated within the <sup>3</sup>[State]).

<sup>3</sup>The words within square brackets were substituted for the words "the annual net profits of the property" by s. 5 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964)..

This section shall stand unmodified. Vide para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Laws) Order, 1937.

<sup>3</sup>The word "Province" was originally substituted for the words "territories administered by the Licutenant-Governorof Bengal" by Article 3(1) and the Sch. of the Indian Independence (Adaptation of Bengal and Punjab Acts) Order, 1948, and thereafter the word "State" was substituted for the word "Province" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950. 'The words within the first brackets were substituted for the words "total annual net

profits calculated as aforesaid accruing from such property, and also the proportion of such profits calculated as aforesaid accruing from such property, and also the proportion of such profits which may reasonably be calculated to accrue in the State" by s. 6 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964).

When property lies in different districts.

When property is partly in and partly outside the State,

۶.

#### of 1880.]

۰,

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.—Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Sections 75-78.)

75. If such return be not furnished within the period of two months from the date on which such notice was served, or within any extended time allowed by the Collector of the district, or if such Collector shall deem that any return made in pursuance of such notice is untrue or incorrect, such Collector shall proceed to ascertain and determine by such ways or means as to him shall seem expedient '[the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be, calculated as aforesaid in respect of such property.]

<sup>2</sup>76. If such Collector is unable to ascertain the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be, calculated as aforesaid, in respect of any property assessable under this Chapter, he may, by such ways or means as to him shall seem expedient—

- (a) <sup>3</sup>[in the case of all coal mines and quarries], ascertain and determine the annual despatches therefrom to the best of his judgment having regard to all the circumstances of the case, and
- (b) in the case of any other property, ascertain and determine the value of such other property and determine six per centum on such value to be the annual net profits of such other property.

77. The expenses incurred in making any valuation under section 75 or section 76 may be recovered together with all costs of the recovery thereof as provided in section 98 from the person who was bound to make such return or who made the incorrect return.

78. So soon as such Collector shall have ascertained and determined <sup>4</sup>[the annual despatches or the annual net profit, as the case may be, in respect of] any such property, he shall cause to be served upon the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of such property a notice informing him of <sup>3</sup>[the quantity of the annual despatches or] the amount of the annual net profits so ascertained and determined by him.

'The words within the square brackets were inserted by s. 9(2), ibid

If return not furnished or incorrect, Collector to make valuation.

:

-----

ţ

Valuation where compilation of average not possible,

Cost of valuation from whom to be recovered.

Notice of valuation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The words within square brackets were substituted for the words "the annual net profits of such property calculated as aforesaid" by s. 7 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act. 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964).

Section 76 was substituted for the original by s. 8, ibid.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "in the case of a coal mine" by s. 5 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "the annual net profits as aforesaid of" by s, 9(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964).

L

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.—Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Section 79.)

79. New valuations under this chapter shall be made by the Collector of the district every year, and such Collector may for that purpose cause such notices to be issued and served; and such returns to be made, and shall have such powers and authorities as are in this Part mentioned and conferred:

Declaration of annual net profits by owner for five years.

Effect of acceptance by Collector of declaration. Provided that whenever any return made under section 72 '[in respect of any property assessable under this Chapter] shall be accepted by the Collector for any year, the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of such property may, if he sees fit, declare in writing at the time of such acceptance that <sup>2</sup>[the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be,] set forth in such return may, for the purposes of this Act, be deemed to be <sup>2</sup>[the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be,] for each of the five years then next ensuing;

and, if the Collector of the district shall agree to accept such declaration, no new valuation shall be made of such property until the said five years shall have expired:

<sup>3</sup>Provided further that if the Collector is satisfied that though <sup>4</sup>[despatches issued or] net profits accrued, from any property assessable under this chapter, in any previous years no cess was paid in respect thereof the Collector shall proceed to ascertain and determine by such ways or means as to him shall seem expedient <sup>5</sup>[the annual despatches or the annual net profits, as the case may be, in respect of such property] for each such year during a period not exceeding the last preceding three years, and road cess and public works cess shall be payable in respect thereof at the rate determined for each such year, respectively, and the Collector shall add the amount of such cess to the amount shown in the notice to be served under section 80 and such cess shall be payable in two equal instalments as provided in section 80.

# 420

7<u>.</u> Valuations

under this

chapter to be annual.

· · · · ·

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The words within the square brackets were inserted by s. 10(1)(a) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964).

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "the annual net profits" by s. 10(1)(b), *ibid.* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This proviso was added by s. 10 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act XI of 1934).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>The words within the square brackets were inserted by s. 10(2)(a) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "the net profits of such property" by s. 10(2)(b), *ibid.* 

of 1880.]

2

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.—Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Sections 80-82.)

<sup>180.</sup> When the rate of road cess and public works cess to be levied in the district upon property assessable under this chapter shall have been determined for any year as in this Act provided, the Collector of the district shall cause to be served on the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of every such property a notice showing the amount of road cess and public works cess respectively payable in respect of such property, and specifying the date from which such cesses shall take effect. Such amount shall be payable by such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier to such Collector in two equal instalments within a period of sixty days from the date of service of the notice as aforesaid.

81. In any case in which the occupier of such property is a different person from the owner, and has paid in excess of half of the sum due as road cess and public works cess on account of any instalment, such occupier shall be entitled to deduct the amount of such excess from the next and subsequent instalments of rent payable in respect of such property, and every owner who has paid in excess of half of such sum due shall be entitled to recover the amount of such excess from the occupier:

Provided that in no case shall an occupier deduct from his annual rent more than half of the rate of the road cess and public works cess on every rupec thereof.

82. The total of the cesses payable in respect of property assessable under this chapter owned or occupied by the same person in two or more districts shall be payable to the Collector of the district where the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier may reside or have his chief place of business, and shall be by him transmitted to the Collectors of other districts in the proportion in which the <sup>2</sup>[District Road Funds] of such districts shall be severally entitled thereto, as provided in the section next following. Notice of rate of cess and date of payments.

Recovery by occupier or owner who has paid in excess.

How distributed when property in different districts.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Section 80 was substituted for the original by s. 2 of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1981 (West Ben, Act XXXV of 1981).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>These words were substituted for the word "Committees," by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben, Act III of 1885).

#### [Ben. Act IX

i

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter V.—Valuation, Assessment and Levy of Cesses on Mines, Railways and other Immovable Property.—Sections 83, 84.)

83. Whenever any property assessable under this chapter lies in two or more districts, the '[Board of Revenue] shall from time to time determine, out of <sup>2</sup>[the total annual despatches or the total annual net profits, as the case may be,] stated in the return, or in the valuation of <sup>3</sup>[such despatches issuing from, or such profits accruing in, the territories] <sup>4</sup>[within its jurisdiction], and ascertained in any manner as aforesaid, the proportions in which such property shall be assessed in each of the said districts respectively, and the proportion of the road cess due thereon which shall be assigned to the <sup>3</sup>[District Road Fund] of each district concerned.

84. Every notice under this chapter may be served---

- (a) by leaving it at the registered office (if any) of such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier aforesaid;
- (b) by sending it by post in a letter addressed to such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier at his office, or, if he have more offices than one, at his principal office;
- (c) by giving it to such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier.

See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

<sup>7</sup>The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "the total annual net profits" by s. 11(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben, Act XXIII of 1964).

<sup>1</sup>The words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "such profits accruing in the territories" by s. 11(2), *ibid*.

'These words were substituted for the words "subject to him", by the Bengal Decentralization Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>3</sup>These words were substituted for the word "Committee" by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben, Act III of 1885).

Service of notices under this chapter.

422

>

tion of proportion

Determina-

of profits when

property in

different districts.

of 1880.]

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VI.—Special Provisions for [Orissa and] Midnapore.—Sections 85-87.)

# CHAPTER VI.

# Special Provisions for [Orissa and] Midnapore.

85. [In any district of the '[State] of Orissa and] in the district of Midnapore, the Collector may at any time, with the sanction of the Comissioner, order that any revenue-free estate not exceeding five hundred standard bighas in extent, of which the valuation shall have been completed, shall, for the purpose of payment and levy of the cesses due in respect thereof, be annexed to any other estate within the ambit of which it is situate or which it adjoins.

Collectors in [Orissa and] Midnapore may order certain revenue-free estates to be annexed to other estates for purposes of payment of cess.

86. Notice of such order shall be given by the Collector to the holder of the estate to which such revenue-free estate is ordered to be so annexed, and to such notice shall be appended a copy of the valuation-roll of the said revenue-free estate, and thereupon such holder shall be liable to pay annually to the Collector, on account of such revenue-free estate, road cess and public works cess at one-half of the rates which may be fixed under this Act for the levy of the said cesses respectively in the district generally for each year.

87. Notice of such order shall also be given by the Collector to the holder of the said revenue-free estate, and such notice shall require him to pay annually, and he shall thereupon be bound to pay to the holder of such other estate road cess and public works cess at the full rates which may be fixed under this Act for the levy of the said cesses respectively in the district generally for each year.

Notice to be given to holder of estate to which such revenue-free estate is andexed.

Notice to be given to holder of revenue-free estate.

'This word was substituted for the word "Province" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

[Ben. Act IX

12

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VI.—Special Provisions for [Orissa and] Midnapore.—Sections 88-90.—Chapter VII.— Miscellaneous.—Section 91.)

Cesses payable by holder of revenuefree estate in such instalments as Board of Revenue may direct.

Notices to

be served.

88. Such cesses shall be so payable by the holder of the said revenue-free estates in two equal instalments, on such dates as may be fixed by the '[Board of Revenue] under section 42 for the payment of cess by the holders of revenue-free estates, or in such other instalments and on such other dates as the '[Board of Revenue] may direct, or, if the '[Board of Revenue] shall so order, the whole amount so payable on account of such cesses for each year shall be payable in a single sum on any such date as the '[Board of Revenue] may appoint.

In default of payment as hereby required, the provisions of section 47 shall be applicable.

89. Whenever the service of a notice on the holder of a revenuefree estate is required by the provisions of section 40, the Collector shall cause such notice to be served, notwithstanding that the revenuefree estate may have been annexed to another estate as hereinbefore provided;

and the Collector shall further cause a notice containing the same particulars to be served in respect of such revenue-free estate on the holder of the other estate to which it is under the provisions of section 85 annexed.

Collector may revoke orders passed under section 85,

90. The Collector may at any time, with the sanction of the Commissioner, revoke any order passed under section 85, and shall give notice of such revocation both to the holder of the revenue-free estate affected and to the holder of the other estate to which such revenue-free estate was annexed.

#### CHAPTER VII.

#### Miscellaneous.

Collector may appoint certain establishthents. 91. The Collector, with the sanction of the Board of Revenue, may appoint such establishments as may be required for making valuations and re-valuations under this Act, for making collections, recovering arrears, keeping accounts connected therewith, and generally for all purposes connected with such valuations, re-valuations, collections and

424

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

of 1880.]

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.— Sections 91A-94.)

recoveries, and other purposes of this Act, and may incur such other expenses as are requisite for such purposes;

and the payment of such establishments and other charges on bills signed by the Collector shall be the first charge on the District Road Fund.

'91A. The Collector may, with the sanction of the Commissioner, pay to any person appointed by him to collect the road cess and public works cess such percentage of the total amount collected by such person as to him may seem fit.

92. For the purpose of making any valuation of lands directed by this Part, the Collector shall exercise the powers vested in Collectors by clause I of Section 23 and clause I of section 24 of Regulation VII of 1822<sup>2</sup>, except so far as the said clauses authorize any inquiry into rights or interests attaching to such lands.

93. Every valuation under this Part shall be open to revision by the Commissioner or Board of Revenue, and not otherwise.

False returns. <sup>3</sup>94. Any person who is bound to make any return under this Part shall be deemed to be legally bound to give notice and to furnish information to a public servant in respect of the same.

If the Collector shall see ground for believing that any return made is false, he may prosecute the maker accordingly. <sup>4</sup>94. Any person who is bound to make any return under this Part shall be deemed to be legally bound to give notice and to furnish information to a public servant in respect of the same.

If the Collector shall see ground for believing that any return made is false, he may prosecute the maker accordingly. Payment of commission to tahsildars. ł

1

valuation.

Powers of Collector

making

Commissioner or Board may revise valuation.

False returns.

425

Section 91A was inserted, for Western Bengal by s. 16 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act 1V of 1910).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>The Bengal Land-revenue Settlement Regulation, 1822.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;Section 94 is in force in this form in Western Bengal.

<sup>\*</sup>Section 94 is in force in this form in Eastern Bengal.

The difference in the section as in force in Western Bengal and in Eastern Bengal, respectively, lies in the words printed in italics.

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.— Sections 95-97.)

> And, if the person so prosecuted is convicted, the Collector may proceed to make a valuation of the lands mentioned in such return, by such ways and means as to him shall seem expedient.

95. Every return filed by or on behalf of any person in pursuance of the provisions of this Part shall bear the signature and address of such person, or his authorized agent, and shall be admissible in evidence against such person, but shall not be admissible in his favour.

**96.** Every notice under this Part required to be served, except as otherwise expressly provided, may be served—

- (1) by delivering the same to the person to whom it is directed, or, on failure of such service, by posting the same on some conspicuous part of the house in which the said person resides, or by delivering the said notice to any agent authorized to appear generally for the person to whom such notice is directed; or
- (2) by sending a registered letter containing such notice directed to the said person at his usual place of abode or to the place where he may be known to reside; or
- (3) by posting a copy of the notice at the *mal-cutcherry* of the estate or tenure to which the notice relates, or, if no such *mal-cutcherry* be found, on some conspicuous place on such estate or tenure: and, in the case of estates paying their annual revenue by four instalments, by delivering another copy thereof to the agent who shall have paid an instalment of revenue next after the preparation of such notice. In all cases where two or more persons are bolders of an estate or tenure, service of notice under this clause shall be deemed to be good and sufficient service on each and all of such persons.

97. The costs of service of every notice and process by this Act required to be served shall in the first instance be defrayed from the District Road Fund, and, subject to such rules as may be made by the Board of Revenue under section 106, shall be recoverable either from the person to whom such notice or process is addressed, or from the person owing to whose default such notice or process is issued, as the

Returns evidence against the maker only.

۶,

426

Service of notices under this Part.

Costs of service.

۰.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words in italics printed opposite were repealed, in Western Bengal, by s. 17 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), and are omitted.

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.— Sections 98, 99.)

Collector may think fit; and every such amount shall be deemed to be due to the Collector, but when levied by the Collector shall be credited to the District Road Fund:

Provided that no costs or other expenses whatever shall be recovered from any person in respect of the publication or issue of any proclamation or notice calling for any return or giving intimation of any amount payable by any person as cess under this Act other than notices of demand to pay any amount of cess which has become due.

98. Every amount due, or which may become due, to any Collector under the provisions of this Act in respect of any arrears of cess, of any expenses incurred, of any fee or costs payable, of any notices served, of any fines imposed, or on any other account, may be realized by such Collector by any process provided by any law for the time being in force for the realization of public demands; and shall be deemed to be a public demand under such law:

Provided that the [District Boad Fund] shall indemnify the Collector of the district for all expenses incurred, and for all costs and damages for which such Collector may become liable (whether in connection with suits before the Civil Courts or otherwise) in respect of any proceedings for the recovery of any such dues as aforesaid.

99. Instead of proceeding as provided by the last preceding section for the recovery of any sum due under this Act, or if after so proceeding the Collector shall have failed to find property belonging to the person from whom any such sum is due, by the sale of which such sum may be recovered, the Collector may, if he sees fit, after recording his opinion to that effect, cause a notification in form in Schedule F contained to be issued for the estate or tenure in respect of which any such amount is due.

Such notification shall be published by beat of drum in every village containing any land to which such notification relates, and a copy thereof shall be posted in a conspicuous place in every such village and at the *mal-cutcherry* of the estate or tenure to which such notification relates, if such *cutcherry* be found.

Every payment of rent, save and except to the Collector or some person by him thereunto appointed, made after such publication, until further order from the Collector, shall be null and void;

and the Collector may recover by any process of law for the time being in force, by which he might recover rent due to the Government from a tenant in an estate which is managed directly by the Collector, No costs to be recovered for certain notices.

Dues under the Act to be levied as public demand.

Collector may recover dues out of rent.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>These words were substituted for the words "District Road Committee" by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

[Ben. Act IX

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.---Sections 100-102.)

the rent then or thereafter to become due from any occupier, tenureholder, under-tenant or *raiyat* on the estate or tenure in respect of which the notification has been issued, until the amount due to the Collector together with all costs shall be satisfied, whereupon the said notification shall be revoked.

The receipt of the Collector in respect of all sums paid to him as rent or so recovered shall be, to the extent of such sums, a valid discharge in respect of rent due by the occupier, tenure-holder, under-tenant or *raiyat* to whom such receipt is given.

In case the Collector shall see fit so to proceed, the claim for arrears of road cess and public works cess due from any estate or tenure in respect of which a notification has been issued as above provided shall have priority over any other demand or claim or lien existing thereupon other than the demand of Government revenue.

100. The '[Board of Revenue] may at any time invest any person with the powers of a Collector under this Part to be exercised by such person under the control or supervision of the Collector, or independently of such control and supervision, as the '[Board of Revenue] shall direct.

101. The Collector may <sup>2\*</sup> \* \* \* delegate all or any of his powers and functions under this Part to be exercised, under the control and supervision of the Collector, by any Deputy Collector, Assistant Collector, Sub-Deputy Collector or other officer of like rank:

Provided that every order passed by such Deputy Collector, Assistant Collector, Sub-Deputy Collector or other officer shall be appealable to the Collector within fifteen days of such order being passed.

102. Every person who shall deem himself to be aggrieved by any valuation made by a Collector under the provisions of section 75 or 76 may, within one month after the issue of the notice mentioned in section 78,

and <sup>3\*</sup> \* every person who shall deem himself to be aggrieved by any valuation made by the Collector under the provisions of any other section of this Part,

may, within one month after the posting up of a copy of the valuationroll as mentioned in section 35,

prefer his objections to the Collector;

Collector's claim to have priority.

٥.

Board of Revenue may invest any person with Collector's powers.

Collector may delegate powers.

Appeals against valuation.

<sup>&</sup>quot;See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>The words "with the sanction of the Commissioner" were omitted, by the Bengal Decentralisation Act, 1915 (Ben. Act V of 1915).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The words "subject to anything contained in Chapter IIA," were repealed in Western Bengal by s, 3 and the Second Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act I of 1939).

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.— Sections 103-105.)

and, if such objections, or any of them, are disallowed, may, within one month of such disallowance, appeal to the Commissioner against such valuation, and the decision of the Commissioner shall be final.

103. Every order for the levy of a fine or of expenses passed by a Collector under this Act shall be appealable to the Commissioner within one month from the service of the first process for the levy of such fine or expenses. Except as otherwise provided in section 18, pending such appeal, and until the order of the Commissioner, which shall be final, all process for such levy shall be discontinued.

104. Every order passed by the Collector under sections 19, 20, 26, <sup>1</sup>46(2), 50, 51, 53, 85, 98 or 99 shall be appealable to the Commissioner within one month from the date of such order.

<sup>2</sup>105. Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained,----

(a) the Collector may at any time revise any order made under this Part by himself or by any officer subordinate to him, unless an appeal against such order has been preferred, and

(b) all proceedings of the Collector or of any officer of a lower grade under this Part shall be subject to the general control and supervision of the Commissioner and of the Board of Revenue, and all proceedings of the Commissioner under this Part shall be subject to the general control and supervision of the Board of Revenue. <sup>3</sup>105. Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained,—

all proceedings of the Collector or of any officer of a lower grade under this Part shall be subject to the general control and supervision of the Commissioner and of the Board of Revenue, and all *such* proceedings of the Commissioner shall be subject to the general control and supervision of the Board of Revenue.

orders by Collector, and control and supervision by Commissioner and Board.

Revision of

429

Orders for levy of fine appealable.

Orders appealable to Commissioner.

Collector's proceedings subject to supervision of Commissioner and Board.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;These figures "46(2)," were inserted for Western Bengal, by s. 19 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910) and for Eastern Bengal by s. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Repealing and Amending Act, 1938 (Ben. Act 1 of 1939).

<sup>-</sup>Section 105 is in force in this form in Western Bengal, having been substituted by s. 20 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1910 (Ben. Act IV of 1910), for the section printed opposite to it.

The differences in section 105 as in force in Western Bengal and in Eastern Bengal, respectively, lie in the matter printed in italics.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Section 105 is in force in this form in Eastern Bengal.

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VII.—Miscellaneous.— Sections 106, 107.)

Board may make piles. 106. The Board of Revenue may, '[subject to the provisions of section 107-R,] from time to time make, and, when made, from time to time alter, add to or cancel, any rules—

- (a) prescribing forms for the notices, returns and valuation-rolls required by this Part to be issued or made;
- (b) prescribing the amounts which shall be levied in respect of the issue of each notice and process under this Part, and regulating the recovery thereof under section 97;
- (c) prescribing the amount of copying fee to be levied in respect of supplying extracts and copies of returns and valuationrolls as provided in section 34;
- (d) apportioning the amount of the cesses for the payment of which the respective holders of the several shares of an estate in respect of which separate accounts are kept shall be primarily liable under section 44;
- (e) regulating the opening, keeping and closing of separate accounts in respect of amounts of cess payable by recorded shareholders in revenue-free estates as provided in section 46;
- (f) regulating the proceedings of the Collectors under Chapter V;

and otherwise providing for the proper execution of this Act in respect of valuations of the assessment and of the levy of the cesses and other sums due under the same.

All rights in immovable property saved unless affected by this Act, 107. Nothing in this Part contained, and nothing done in accordance with this Act, shall be deemed to affect the rights of any person in respect of any immovable property or of any interest therein except as otherwise expressly provided in this Act.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>These words, brackets, figures and letter were inserted by s. 11 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act X1 of 1934).

of 1880.]

5

. .

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107A.)

#### 'CHAPTER VIIA.

# Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.

<sup>1</sup>107A. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act-

(a) the valuation or revaluation of lands in a district included in Schedule G or in a part of such district shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this chapter:

<sup>2</sup>Provided that if at any stage of the operations regarding valuation or revaluation of lands under this chapter, the <sup>3</sup>[State] Government is of opinion that the valuation or revaluation of such lands should be made in accordance with the provisions laid down in Chapters II, III and IV, the <sup>3</sup>[State] Government shall, by notification in the *Official Gazette*, make an order to that effect, and on the publication of such notification,—

- (i) the valuation or revaluation of lands in respect of which such notification is in force shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Chapters II, III and IV;
- (ii) the valuation or revaluation of such lands made under this chapter shall have no effect; and
- (iii) the holders of estates or tenures or the owners, holders or occupiers of rent-free interest who have filed returns under section 107J shall not be again called upon to file returns under Chapter II or Chapter IV for the purposes of valuation or revaluation under Chapters II, III and IV, and the returns filed under section 107J shall be treated as returns filed under Chapter II or Chapter IV, as the case may be;
- (b) every holder of an estate, other than <sup>4</sup>[the Government], and every holder of a tenure or other interest in land in a district or part of district in respect of which such valuation or

Application of chapter.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Chapter VILA (Sections 107-A to 107-S) were inserted by s. 12 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act X1 of 1934),

This proviso to clause (a) was added by s. 2 and the First Schedule to the West Bengal Laws (Amendment and Repeal) Act, 1947 (West Bengal Act XII of 1947).

<sup>&</sup>quot;This word was substituted for the word "Provincial" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

<sup>&</sup>quot;The words "the Crown" were originally substituted for the word "Government" by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937, and thereafter the word "Government" was substituted for the word "Crown" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

#### [Ben. Act IX

• . . • •

ł

VIII of 1885.

ja 11 1. š. š

-0.11

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107B.)

> revaluation shall have been made shall be bound to pay cess in accordance with the provisions of this chapter from the date fixed by the Board of Revenue as the date from which such valuation or revaluation shall take effect:

> Provided that no such valuation or revaluation shall take effect before the expiration of the period of five years from the date from which the last preceding valuation, if any, took effect:

> <sup>1</sup>Provided further that where a notification has been issued under the proviso to clause (a) for the valuation or revaluation of any lands in accordance with the provisions of Chapter II, III and IV, the cess in respect of such lands shall, when such valuation or revaluation shall have been made, be paid in accordance with the provisions of Chapter III or Chapter IV, as the case may be, from the date fixed by the Board of Revenue as the date from which the valuation or revaluation so made shall take effect.

(2) The <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may, from time to time, by notification in the <sup>3</sup>[Official Gazente] include in Schedule G any district in respect of the whole or any part of which a record-of-rights has been finally published under Chapter X of the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885, <sup>4</sup>[or may, by like notification with effect from such date as may be specified in the notification, exclude from the said schedule any district for the time being included therein].

 $^{5}(3)$  The reference in sub-section (1) to Schedule G shall be construed as a reference to such schedule as for the time being amended under sub-section (2).

Definitions.

<sup>6</sup>107B. In this chapter, unless there is anything repugnant in the subject or context,—

 "acreage rate" means the rate per acre of land determined in accordance with the provisions of this chapter;

<sup>3</sup>The words "Provincial Government" were originally substituted for the words "Local Government" by paragraph 4(1) of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order. 1937, and themafter the word "State" was substituted for the word "Provincial" by paragraph 4(1) of the Adaptation of Laws Order, 1950.

See foot-note 2 on page 384. ante.

<sup>4</sup>These words were added by s. 2 and the First Schedule to the West Bengal Laws (Amendment and Repeal) Act, 1947 (West Ben, Act XII of 1947).

<sup>3</sup>This sub-section (3) was added, *ibid.* 

"See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

æ,

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This proviso to clause (b) was added by the First Schedule to the West Bengal Laws (Antendment and Repeal) Act, 1947 (West Ben. Act XII of 1947).

#### of 1880.]

۰,

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107B.)

- (2) "annual value of any land" means the sum of money calculated by multiplying the area of the land by the acreage rate applicable to such land;
- (3) "cess" means the road cess and the public works cess;
- (4) "cess-free land" means all land in respect of which, in accordance with the provisions of section 107-C, no cess shall be payable;
- (5) "cess-paying land" means all land other than cess-free land;
- (6) "class of land" means a class of land according to the classification adopted in the last finally published record-ofrights relating to the district or part of a district in which the land is situated;
- (7) (i) except as provided in sub-clause (ii), "Collector" means, in the case of lands which have been or are about to be valued or revalued under this chapter, the officer-incharge of the revenue administration of the district in which such lands are situated or any officer appointed by the <sup>1</sup>[State Government] to exercise any of the functions of a Collector under this chapter in respect of such lands;
  - (ii) in clause (8) in sub-section (1), of section 107-M and in section 170-O "Collector" means, in the case of a revenue-paying estate, the Collector or similar officer on whose revenue-roll the state is borne, and, in the case of a revenue-free estate, the Collector or other similar officer on whose general register of revenuefree lands the estate is borne;
- (8) "estate" means—
  - land included under one entry in the general registers of revenue-paying lands and of revenue-free lands prepared and maintained by the Collector of a district under the Land Registration Act, 1876, or any similar law for the time being in force;
  - (2) any land acquired under any rules issued by, or under authority of, Government for the sale, grant, lease or clearance of waste-lands;
- (9) "farmer of an estate" means the farmer of an estate let to him in farm by <sup>2</sup>[any Government];
- (10) "holder of an estate" includes <sup>3</sup>[the Government] in the case of estates which are—
  - (a) the property of <sup>3</sup>[the Government], or

Ben. Act VII of 1876.

See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

<sup>&</sup>quot;These words were substituted for the word "Government" by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.

<sup>&</sup>quot;See foot-note 4 on page 431, ante.

[Ben. Act IX

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107C.)

- (b) the property of private persons and are under the direct management of '[any Government] or have been let in farm by '[any Government];
- (11) "prescribed" means prescribed by rules made under this chapter;
- (12) "rent" means whatever is lawfully payable or deliverable in money or kind by a tenant to his landlord on account of the use or occupation of the land held by the tenant;

*Explanation.*—Where rent is payable in kind the money value thereof shall, for the purposes of this chapter, be taken to be the value of the landlord's share of the crop calculated on an average of the five years next preceding any valuation or revaluation under this chapter;

(13) "tenure", "raiyat" and "under-raiyat" have the same meanings as in the Bengal Tenancy Act, 1885.

VIII of 1885.

<sup>2</sup>107C. (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section all lands shall be cess-paying.

- (2) The following lands shall be cess-free, namely:----
  - (a) in areas other than those referred to in clause (b)—
    - (i) all lands recorded in the last finally published record-of-rights as belonging to a class included in the statement of classes of cess-free lands published under sub-section (3) of section 107-G;
    - (ii) all lands included in a list of cess-free lands published under sub-section (2) of section 107-I;
    - (b) in arrears which have been omitted from a record-ofrights, or in which the Collector considers that the classification contained in the last finally published record-of-rights should not be followed owing to extensive changes in the land which have occurred since its preparation-~
      - (i) all lands which consist of jungle, road, path, river, khal, graveyard, cremation-ground, mosque, temple or any other place of public worship, unculturable waste, unculturable marsh and unculturable bil so long as they continue to be such;
      - (ii) all lands exempted for the time being from liability' to cess by an order of the Collector.

Cesspaying and cess-free lands.

434

 $\mathcal{O}_{2}$ 

 $\sim 10$ 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>See foot-note 2 on page 433, ante. <sup>2</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107D.)

(3) Nothing in this chapter shall apply to the following classes of immovable properties, namely:---

- (i) railways and tramways,
- (ii) mines and quarries, and
- (iii) forests:

Provided that the Collector may, at his discretion, decide what land shall be assessable under Chapter V as forests.

<sup>1</sup>107D. (1) On receipt of an order under section 12 or section 15 for the valuation or revaluation of a district or part of a district the Collector may divide the district or part thereof into as many suitable units as he considers necessary and shall determine in accordance with such rules as the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may make a fair and uniform acreage rate for the district or part thereof, as the case may be, or, if the district or part thereof has been divided into units, a fair and uniform acreage rate for each unit.

(2) Such rate shall not exceed—

(a) one-fifth of the value of the gross produce per acre of all cess-paying lands in the area for which the rate is being determined estimated on the assumption that the land produces a normal crop of paddy:

Provided that in respect of any district or part of a district the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may, at its discretion, direct that the estimate shall be made without such assumption,

in making the estimate the following matters shall be taken into account, namely:----

- (i) the general productivity of agricultural lands in the area for which the rate is being determined;
- (ii) the prices prevailing during the preceding five years of agricultural produce generally in the district;
- (iii) the total estimated value of all agricultural produce of the district for the preceding five years;
- (b) a rate likely to increase the total cess demand in the district by more than twenty per centum.

(3) In determining such rate the Collector shall take amongst others the following matters into consideration:—

 (i) the maximum rate according to his estimate under subsection (2);

See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

Determination of acreage rate.

l

į

į

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107E.)

- (ii) the amount of the existing demand for road cess and public works cess in the district and the incidence thereof;
- (iii) the rate of rent generally payable by *raiyats* or underraiyats of all grades.

(4) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-sections (1), (2) and (3), in the case of lands acquired under any rule issued by, or under the authority of, Government for the sale, lease, grant or clearance of waste lands, or held directly from Government, and used for the cultivation of tea, coffee or cinchona, the acreage rate shall be twenty rupees per acre.

<sup>1</sup>107E. (1) The Collector shall, except in the case of an area referred to in clause (b) of sub-section (2) of section 107C, in accordance with such rules as the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may make in this behalf---

- (a) prepare a statement of the classes of lands in the district or part of a district which shall be cess-free and shall include therein any class of lands consisting entirely of jungle, road, path, river, *khal*, graveyard or cremation-ground, mosque, temple or any other place of public worship, and may include therein any other class of land if he considers it to consist entirely of unculturable waste, and
- (b) prepare, in such form as may be prescribed, a list of lands in any village, group of villages or local area, other than lands belonging to any class specified in the statement prepared under clause (a), which shall be cess-free:

Provided that he shall not include any land in the list except on the ground that it is unculturable waste.

(2) In the case of an area referred to in clause (b) of subsection (2) of section 107C, the Collector shall, after considering the returns, if any, submitted by the holder of the estate or rent-free interest in which any part of such area is included, summarily determine the total area and the annual value of the cess-paying lands in such area which are included in any estate or rent-free interest, and shall prepare the valuation-roll for such estate or rent-free interest accordingly.

436

۶.

Determination of cess-free and cesspaying lands.

See foot-note I on page 431, ante.

of 1880.]

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Sections 107F, 107G.)

<sup>1</sup>107F. (1) The Collector shall publish a statement specifying-

- (a) the units, if any, into which he proposes to divide the district or part thereof;
- (b) the acreage rate determined by him for the district or part thereof or for each unit;
- (c) the classes of land which shall be cess-free;

with an explanation of the grounds for his proposals, in such manner and for such period as may be prescribed, and shall receive and consider any objections received regarding the same during the period of publication, and shall dispose of such objections according to such rules as the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may make.

(2) No such objection shall be considered except in regard to the units into which it is proposed to divide the district or part thereof, the acreage rate which has been determined, and the classes of land which shall be cess-free.

<sup>1</sup>107G. (1) An appeal from any order of the Collector disposing of an objection under section 107F shall, if presented within thirty days from the date of the order, lie to the revenue authority appointed by the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] in this behalf whose decision thereon shall, subject to the provisions of sub-section (2), be final.

(2) The <sup>2</sup>[State Government] and, subject to the control of the <sup>2</sup>[State Government], the Board of Revenue may revise any estimate made under sub-section (2) of section 107D by any subordinate authority and any decision by any such authority relating to the division of a district or part thereof into units or to any acreage rate or to the classes of land which shall be cess-free.

(3) When the appeals, if any, under sub-section (1) have been disposed of, the Collector shall submit all his proceedings through the Commissioner of the Division and the Board of Revenue to the <sup>2</sup>[State Government], and the <sup>2</sup>[State Government], after making such modifications, if any, Preliminary publication of division of district into units, acreage rate and classes of cess-free lands.

Appeal to and revision by a authority and final publication of division of division of district, acreage rate and classes of cess-free lands.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

<sup>&</sup>quot;See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

Ben. Act III

I

[

of 1885.

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Sections 107H, 107-I.)

as it may think fit, shall finally publish in the '[Official Gazette] a statement showing----

- (a) the units, if any, into which the district or part of a district will be divided,
- (b) the classes of land which shall be cess-free, and
- (c) the acreage rate or rates,

and the publication in the '[Official Gazette] shall be conclusive evidence that these have been duly determined under this chapter. The '[State Government] shall forward a copy of the statement to the Collector for publication in the prescribed manner.

<sup>3</sup>107H. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 46 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885, the <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may, after considering the views of the District Board, determine for any district or part of a district the rates at which the road cess and the public works cess, respectively, shall be levied for each year on each rupee of the annual value of cess-paying land, and may from time to time vary such rates after considering the views of the District Board:

Provided that the rate at which each such cess shall be levied for any one year shall not exceed the rate of one-quarter anna on each rupee of such annual value.

(2) The rates so determined shall be published in the '[Official Gazette] and in the prescribed manner:

Provided that such publication shall not be necessary unless a change has been made in the rates since they were last published in the '[Official Gazette].

<sup>3</sup>107-I. (1) The Collector shall prepare and publish in such form and in such manner as may be prescribed—

(a) a valuation-roll in respect of every estate showing in addition to any other particulars, the total area and the total annual value respectively of the rent-paying and rent-free lands in the area under valuation other than cess-free lands comprised in the estate, and the land-revenue, if any, payable for the estate or portion of the estate under valuation;

Rates at which cess to be levied.

Preparation

publication of valuation-

and lists of

and

rolls, statements.

lands.

 $\boldsymbol{\gamma}_2$ 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>See foot-note 2 on page 384, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

of 1880.]

# (Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Section 107J.)

- (b) a valuation-roll of every rent-free interest showing in addition to any other particulars the annual value of the cess-paying lands in such interest, and whether the cess is payable to the Collector direct or to the holder of an estate or tenure other than the Collector. In the latter case, the name, number or other description of the estate or tenure within which the land is included shall be stated;
- (c) statements of the annual value of lands comprised in all other interests. The particulars contained in such statements shall be presumed to be correct until the contrary is proved.

Notwithstanding anything contained in any such statement the holder of an estate or tenure shall be entitled to recover from his tenant, and such tenant shall be bound to pay, the cess due on account of the land held or occupied by him according to the provisions of this chapter.

(2) The Collector shall also publish in the prescribed manner the lists of cess-free lands prepared under clause (b) of sub-section (1) of section 107E.

<sup>1</sup>107J. (1) The Collector, may where he thinks fit and in particular in respect of rent-free interests, or where there has been a change since the last finally published record-of-rights in any area was prepared, on the last revaluation made under this chapter, owing to the addition or exclusion of lands by alluvion or diluvion or any other causes, call for returns to be filed by the holders of estates or tenures or the owners, holders or occupiers of rent-free interests in the prescribed form.

Collector to call for returns from owners or holders of estates or other interests.

Power of

(2) Where the Collector requires such returns he shall publish a proclamation in the prescribed manner calling upon the holders of estates or tenures or the owners, holders or occupiers of rent-free interests concerned to file returns in the prescribed form and every such holder or occupier shall file, with full and correct information, the returns so called for within the time specified in the proclamation.

Each such return shall show, in addition to any other particulars, the total area, the area, if any, within the limits of a municipality and the particulars of any change in the area of such estate, tenure or interests, a specification of the lands added thereto or excluded therefrom, with an explanation of the reasons for such change, addition or exclusion, and the revenue or rent payable in respect of the estate, tenure or interest.

439

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

[Ben. Act IX

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Sections 107K-107M.)

(3) If any holder of an estate or tenure or the owner, holder or occupier of rent-free interest fails to comply with the requisition for returns, he shall be subject to the provisions of sections 18, 19 and 20.

'107K. Copies of, or extracts from, the valuation-roll prepared under section 107-I shall be available to holders of estates or tenures or other interests or the owners, holders or occupiers of rent-free interests in such manner and on payment of such fees as may be prescribed.

<sup>1</sup>107L. The Collector may, at any time, correct any *bona fide* clerical mistake in or omission from the valuation-roll.

<sup>1</sup>107M. (1) Every holder of any estate, other than <sup>2</sup>[the Government] and every farmer of an estate, shall yearly pay to the Collector the total cess calculated on the annual value of the cess-paying lands included in such estate, at the rate or rates which may have been determined for the road cess and public works cess respectively for the year as in this chapter provided, less a deduction to be calculated at the said rates for every rupee of the land-revenue, if any, entered in the valuation-roll of such estate as payable in respect thereof, and less also a deduction at half the said rates on the annual value of all cess-paying rent-free lands comprised within the estate.

(2) Every holder, other than a rent-free holder, of a tenure or other subordinate interest comprising any cess-paying lands shall yearly pay to the person to whom his rent is payable the total cess calculated on the annual value of the cess-paying lands comprised in his tenure or interest, at the rate or rates which may have been determined for the road cess and public works cess for the year as in this chapter provided, less a deduction to be calculated at the said rates for every rupee of the rent payable, if any, by him for such tenure or interest, and less also a deduction at half the said rates on the annual value of all cess-paying rent-free lands comprised within the tenure or interest:

Provided that where the rent payable is equal to or greater than the annual value, no cess shall be payable by him.

*Explanation.*—In this sub-section the expression "rent payable" means, where the rent is payable in kind, the money value thereof.

Copies of or extracts from valuationroll to be available on payment of fees.

Correction of mistakes in valuationroll.

Payment of cess.

ł

٩.

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

<sup>&</sup>quot;See foot-note 4 on page 431, ante.

of 1880.]

(Part II.-Mode of Assessment.-Chapter VIIA.-Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Sections 107N, 107-0.)

(3) Every owner and holder of any rent-free land, and every person in receipt of the rents and profits or in possession or enjoyment of such land, shall be bound to pay year by year to the holder of the estate or tenure in which such land is included ander the proviso to section 50, or to the Collector if the Collector has ordered that the cess shall be paid to him direct, the total cess calculated on the annual value of such land, not being cess-free land, at the full rate or rates which may have been determined for the road and public works cess as in this chapter provided.

<sup>1</sup>107N. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, the Collector may, in accordance with rules to be made by the <sup>2</sup>[State Government], at any time grant abatement or remission of any cess payable under this chapter.

<sup>1</sup>107-0. (1) The Collector shall cause to be served on every holder of an estate other than '[the Government] and on every farmer of an estate, in the prescribed manner, a notice showing the amount of cess payable under sub-section (1) of section 107M in respect of his estate and specifying the date from which such cess will take effect.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in section 107M, the amount shown in the said notice shall be recoverable from the said holder or farmer other than "[the Government].

(3) The Collector may at any time serve a revised notice on the said holder or farmer if he finds that the amount of cess payable under section 107M has not been correctly calculated or has not been correctly shown in the notice.

(4) In case of any change in the rate of cess it shall not be necessary to serve a revised notice but the amount of cess payable shall be proportionate to the changed rate.

(5) The notice issued under sub-section (1) shall include the cess payable in respect of the estate in all districts including cess, if any, payable under sub-section (1) of section 41 or section 51 on account of lands in respect of which a valuation or revaluation made under Chapter II is still in force, and no separate notice under section 40 shall be necessary:

Provided that if any lands valued or revalued in any district under this chapter appertain to an estate which is borne on the revenue-roll or general register of revenue-free lands of another district, and a valuation or revaluation under Chapter II is still in force in respect of any lands

Power to Collector to grant abatement or remission of cess.

Power to serve notice showing cess and fixing the date from which cess shall take effect.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>See folc-note 1 on page 431, ante-<sup>2</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante-<sup>3</sup>See foot-note 4 on page 431, ante-

[Ben. Act IX

VIII of 1885.

(Part II.—Mode of Assessment.—Chapter VIIA.—Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.—Sections 107P-107R.)

 $Q_{2}$ 

appertaining to that estate which are situated in the latter district, the Collector may issue a notice under section 40 showing the total cess payable in respect of the estate in all districts both under section 107M and under sub-section (1) of section 41 and section 51, and no separate notice under sub-section (1) shall be necessary.

Particulars of cess to be specified in receipt. <sup>1</sup>107P. (1) Where a tenant makes payment on account of cess to his landlord the rent-receipt granted by the landlord under section 56 of the Bengal Tenany Act, 1885, shall specify the amount of cess paid by the tenant and the total cess demand payable by him correctly calculated by the landlord.

(2) If the receipt does not contain substantially the particulars required by sub-section (1), it shall be presumed, until the contrary is shown, to be an acquittance in full of all demands of cess payable by the tenant to his landlord up to the date on which the receipt was given.

Alteration of annual value and revision of valuationroll in certain cases. <sup>1</sup>107Q. (1) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act, if at any time while any valuation or revaluation is in force it appears to the Collector that owing to alluvion or diluvion or other cause extensive changes have occurred in any land, and that in consequence thereof the annual value shown in the valuation-roll of any estate or rent-free interest should be altered, he may, after notice to the holder of such estate or rent-free interest and after making such inquiry as he considers necessary, enhance or reduce the annual value in such valuation-roll, and publish a revised valuation-roll of such estate or rent-free interest, and issue a revised notice under section 107-O, and may also, if necessary, amend any list published under section 107-I.

(2) When the Collector publishes a revised valuation-roll under subsection (1), he may order that the revised valuation shall take effect from a date not being earlier than the beginning of the second financial year previous to the financial year in which the revised roll is published and cess shall be payable accordingly.

Rules.

<sup>1</sup>107R. (1) The <sup>2</sup>[State Government] may from time to time make, and when made, from time to time, alter, add to or cancel, any rule----

 (a) regulating the determination of the acreage rate referred to in sub-section (1) of section 107D;

<sup>&#</sup>x27;See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante,

See foot-note 1 on page 384, ante.

#### of 1880.]

۰,

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(Part II.--Mode of Assessment.-Chapter VIIA.--Valuation and revaluation of lands in a district or part of a district in respect of which a record-of-rights has been finally published, and payment of cess on such lands.--Section 1075.)

- (b) regulating the preparation of the statement of cess-free lands and the lists of cess-free lands referred to in subsection (1) of section 107E and prescribing the form of such lists;
- (c) prescribing the manner and period of publication of the statement referred to in sub-section (1) of section 107F, the method of disposal of objections under the said sub-section and the manner of final publication of the statement by the Collector under sub-section (3) of section 107G;
- (d) prescribing the manner of publication of the rates determined under section 107H;
- (e) regulating the preparation and prescribing the form and the manner of publication of valuation-rolls and statements of annual value of lands and the manner of publication of lists of cess-free lands under section 107-1;
- (f) prescribing the manner of publication of the proclamation under section 107J and the forms for, and contents of, the returns required under that section;
- (g) prescribing the manner of, and the amount of fees to be levied for, supplying extracts from or copies of valuationrolls under section 107K;
- (h) regulating the abatement or remission of the cess under section 107N;
- (i) prescribing the manner of service of notice under section 107-O; and
- (j) generally to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

(2) Such rules shall be published in the [Official Gazette] and thereupon shall have the force of law:

Provided that any rule made under clause (h) of sub-section (1) shall be subject to the condition of previous publication.

<sup>2</sup>107S. For the purposes of this chapter-

 the following provisions of this Act shall not be applicable, namely:—

The definitions of 'annual value of any land, estate or tenure', 'cultivating raiyat', 'estate', 'holding', 'tenure', 'the Collector' and 'the Collector of the district' in section 4; sections 6, 13, 14, 16, 17 and 21 to 35; in section 37 the words 'from making at any time any reduction which he may think fit in the valuation of any estate or tenure; or';

Application of certain provisions of this Act to this chapter.

See foot-note 2 on page 384, ante.

<sup>2</sup>See foot-note 1 on page 431, ante.

#### [Ben. Act IX

# (Part III.—Constitution and Administration of the District Road Fund.—Chapter VIII.—Constitution and application of the District Road Fund.—Section 108.)

sections 38 to 40A, 41 except the last paragraph as in force in Western Bengal, 51 to 56, 59 to 64, the proviso to section 64A, sections 66 to 71, 89, 93 and the portion of section 102 after the word and figures 'section 78', to the word an figures 'section 35';

- (ii) all the other provisions of this Act shall be applicable mutatis mutandis, so far as the same may reasonably be applied, and subject to the following particular modifications, namely:---
  - (a) in section 42, in sub-section (1), after the words 'revenue-paying estate' and in sub-section (2) after the words 'revenue-free estate' the words 'other than Government, and every farmer of an estate' shall be deemed to be inserted;
  - (b) in sub-section (3) of the said section, for the words 'cultivating raiyat' and for the word 'raiyat' in the two other places where it occurs the words 'holder of any other subordinate interest in land' shall be read;
  - (c) in section 47, after the word 'tenure' the words 'or any other subordinate interest in land' shall be deemed to be inserted;
  - (d) in section 48, after the words 'in an estate or tenure' the words 'or any other subordinate interest in land' shall be deemed to be inserted.

#### PART III.

CONSTITUTION AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE DISTRICT ROAD FUND.

#### CHAPTER VIII.

#### Constitution and Application of the District Road Fund.

Constitution of District Road Fund. CONS

108. The District Road Fund of every district under this Act shall consist of the amount produced by the road cess,

of all sums levied or recovered <sup>1\*</sup> \* in respect of the cesses under this Act <sup>2</sup>[not being fines or penalties and] <sup>3</sup>[not being interest levied in respect of public works cess,]

of all sums assigned by 4[any Government] thereto, whether as a

These words were inserted, ibid.

444

۶.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The words "as fines, penalties or otherwise" were omitted by para, 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.

 $<sup>^3</sup> These words were inserted by s, 10 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act II of 1881).$ 

<sup>&</sup>quot;These words were substituted for the words "the Government" by para. 3 and Sch. IV of the Government of India (Adaptation of Indian Laws) Order, 1937.

of 1880.]

(Part III.—Constitution and Administration of the District Road Fund.—Chapter VIII.—Constitution and application of the District Road Fund.—Sections 109-181.—Part IV.—Chapter XIII.—General.—Section 1.82.)

contribution from the proceeds of the public works cess towards the expenses of assessing and collecting such cess jointly with the road cess or otherwise.

1# \* \* \*

<sup>2</sup>109. The District Road Fund of every district shall be applicable to the following objects and in the following order:—

Firstly.—To the payment of the cost of establishments entertained and expenses incurred by the Collector under section 91.

Secondly.—To the indemnification of the Collector, with the sanction of the Commissioner, for any other costs or damages which he may have incurred, or for which he may have become liable, in the course of the proceedings for the assessment and collection of the cesses under this Act.

<sup>3</sup>And the balance, after payment of such expenses, shall be credited to the Zilla Parishad Fund of the district.

[110 to 181.]—Rep. by sec. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

#### PART IV.

#### CHAPTER XIII.

#### General.

182. The '[State Government] may from time to time make, and, when made, from time to time alter, add to or cancel, any rules, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Act,—

- [(a) to (c)]—rep. by sec. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885);
- (d) prescribing forms of accounts to be kept by the Collector under this Act;
- [(e)] —rep. by sec. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885);
  - (f) fixing the dates for payment of instalments of cess under sections 42 and 57;
- [(g) and (h)]—rep. by sec. 2 and the First Sch. of the Bengal Locia Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885);
   (i) and generally for the purposes of this Act.

Such rules shall be published in the  ${}^{5}[Official Gazette]$  and shall thereupon have the force of law.

'The words "and of all sums whatsoever which may be at the disposal of the District Road Committee as hereinafter appainted" were omitted by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act III of 1885).

-Section 109 was substituted for the original section 109 by s. 2 of the Bengal Local Self-Government Act of 1885 (Ben. Act 10 of 1885).

<sup>5</sup>The Second Paragraph of clause "Secondly" was substituted by s. 118 of, and Second Schedule to, the West Bengal Zilla Parishads Act, 1963 (West Ben, Act XXXV of 1963). Prior to this substitution clauses (a). (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) beginning with the words "and shall be applicable to the following objects, and in the following order, namely:---" were added to the original Second Paragraph by s. 64 of the Bengal Local Self-Government (Amendment) Act, 1908 (Ben, Act V of 1908). Ben, Act V of 1908 was also extended to be assure by Ben. Act I of 1914.

\*See foot-note 1 on page 384, unte.

. .

State Government empowered to prescribe forms and rules.

Application of District Road Fund.

445

÷

.

# (Schedule A.)

SCHEDULE A.

 $q_{f}$ 

#### Form of return prescribed by section 14.

Amount of Government revenue or rent payable by the estate or tenure:

Rs. a. p.

#### PART I.

District

Name by which the estate or tenure is known, and the number which it bears on the Collector's general register, or on any other register kept by the Collector—

Details of lands in the actual occupation or cultivation of the person submitting the return:-

L	2	3	4	5
Pargana.	Name of village and <i>thana</i> in which the lands are situate.	Area of land <sup>1</sup> [if known].	Deduct area of land situate within any municipality.	Annual value of remaining land.

<sup>2</sup>Note.—In the body of this statement should be entered only *nijjot* lands and such uncultivated lands in the use and occupation of the maker of the return as are capable of assessment on their annual value.

446

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>These words in the heading of column 3 of Part I were inserted by s. 11 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben, Act II of 1881).

<sup>&</sup>quot;This note to Part I was substituted for the original note, ibid.

# of 1880.]

# (Schedule A.)

# Part II.

District

Name and number of estate or tenure as in Part I. Details of lands held by cultivating *raiyats* paying direct to the persons submitting the return:—

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Pargana.	Name of village and <i>thana</i> in which the lands are situate.	Name of raiyat, name of village, thana and district in which he resides.	Area occupied '[if known].	Annual rent.	Deduct rent of land included in any munici- pality.	Balance of net rent assessable,

# Part III.

District

Name and number of estate or tenure as in Part I.

Details of the tenure-holders paying to the person submitting the return:-

I.	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Name of tenure- holder and person paying rent for him borne on the books of holder of estate or tenure.	Name of village, <i>thana</i> and district in which such person resides.	Name of village and <i>liana</i> in which tenure is situated.	Name of village and <i>thana</i> in which <i>mal-</i> <i>cutcherry</i> is situate.	Arca.if known.	Annual rent paid by tenure holder,	Deduct rent of land included in any muni- cipality.	Balance of net rent assessable

District

Name and number of estate or tenure as in Part I.

These words in the heading of column 4 of Part II were added by s. 12 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act II of 1881).

PART IV.

[Ben. Act IX

### (Schedule B.)

Details of lands included in the estate or tenure of the person submitting the return which are held by others than himself but for which no rent is paid:---

L	2	3	4	5	6	7
Pargana in which situate.	Name of village and thana in which situated.	Name of holder, and owner, if known.	Name of village, <i>thana</i> and district in which the holder resides.	Area, if known.	Deduct area of land included in any muni- cipality.	Anoval value of remaining land.

I, X. Y. Z., do declare that the statements contained in the above return are true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Signed.....

N.B.—This return must be signed by the holder or his authorized agent, whose address must also be given.

#### SCHEDULE B.

FORM NO. I.

Form of Notice upon a Revenue-paying Estate or Rent-paying Tenure under section 17.

District of

# Notice under section 17 of the Cess Act, 1880.

The holders of estate or tenure (description to be filled in) in the district of......and all others interested therein are hereby required to lodge in the office of the Collector of the said district a return, in the form hereunto annexed, of all lands comprised in such estate or tenure and the rents paid therefor. Such return must be signed by such holder or his authorized agent, and be so lodged within the time mentioned below under a penalty of a daily fine which may amount to fifty runner on each such holder for every day after the expiry of such time or of any extended time

of 1880.]

# (Schedule B.)

which may be allowed by the Collector on application made to him, until such return shall be lodged. Notice is hereby given that no rent is due to the holders of the said estate (or tenure) can be recovered by suit after such time until such return be so lodged.

If the annual amount of revenue or rent payable on the estate or tenure to which this notice refers does not exceed Rs. 500, the holders are required to lodge the return within six weeks of the service of this notice.

If such amount exceeds Rs. 500, within three months of such service.

If for any good reason the holders will be unable to lodge the return within the time allowed, they should apply to the Collector for extension of such time.

COLLECTOR'S OFFICE,

N.B.—To this notice shall be annexed forms of Parts I, II, III and IV of the return which is mentioned in Schedule A.

FORM NO. II.

Form of Notice upon a Revenue-free Estate or Rent-free Tenure under section 17.

District of

# Notice under section 17 of the Cess Act, 1880.

The holder of the revenue-free estate of rent-free tenure (description to be filled in) in the district of .....and all others interested therein are hereby required to lodge in the office of the Collector of the said district a return in the form hereunto annexed, of all lands comprised in such estate or tenure. Such return must be signed by such holder or his authorized agent, and be so lodged within the time mentioned below under a penalty of a daily fine which may amount to fifty rupees on each such holder for every day after the expiry of such time or of any extended time which may be allowed by the Collector on application made to him until such return shall be lodged.

Notice is hereby given that no rents due to the holders of the said estate (or tenure) can be recovered by suit after such time until such return be so lodged.

Dated

449

(Sd/-) A. B.,

Collector.

[Ben. Act IX

## (Schedule C.)

If the gross annual rental of the estate or tenure to which this notice refers does not exceed  $\dot{R}s$ , 500, the holders are required to ledge the return within six weeks of the service of this notice.

If the gross rental exceeds Rs, 500, within three months of such service.

If for any good reason the holders will be unable to lodge the return within the time allowed, they should apply to the Collector for extension of such time.

COLLECTOR'S OFFICE,

Dated

N.B.—To this notice shall be annexed forms of Parts I, II, III and IV of the return which is mentioned in Schedule A.

#### SCHEDULE C.

Form of Notice under section 33.

District of

#### Notice under section 33 of the Cess Act, 1880.

Such return must be signed by him and be lodged within the space of two months from the service of this notice (unless within the said two months such owner, chief agent, manager or occupier obtain from the Collector an extension of the said space of two months), under penalty of a daily fine of fifty rupees for every day after the expiry of such period of extension thereof until such return shall be presented.

Form of Return to the Notice.

District

Details of lands acquired under any rules for the sale, lease, grant or clearance of waste lands or held direct from

Government and used for the cultivation of tea, coffee or cinchona, under the control of the person submitting the return:----

450

(Sd.) A. B., Collector

(Schedule D.)

L	2	3	4	5	6	7
Districts	Parganas and thanas	Designation by which the estate, lot or grant is known, and the number it bears on any register kept by the Collector.		Entire area	Area or areas of lands under cultivation.	Aggregate value at Rs, 10 per
in whi	ch the lands lie.			of land.		acre of land in <sup>1</sup> [column 6].

I, X. Y. Z., do declare that the statements contained in the above return are true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Signed.....

\$<sup>-5</sup>

N.B.—This return must be signed by the owner, chief agent, manager or occupier.

#### SCHEDULE D.

### Form of Notice under section 52.

# Notice to Holders of Lands held Rent-free under section 52 of the Cess Act, 1880.

Notice is hereby given to all concerned that the lands specified in the annexed extracts from valuation-rolls of estates and tenures have been entered by the holders of such estates and tenures in the valuation returns of their estates and tenures under the Cess Act, 1880, and have been valued as shown in the extracts.

Every owner and holder of any land entered in these extracts may appear before the Collector within one month of the publication of this notice, and may object to the amount at which his land has been valued.

If no such objection is made, the owners and holders of lands will be bound to pay year by year to the holder of the estate or tenure in which his land has been entered the amount of road cess and public works cess calculated on the annual value of such land as entered in these extracts at the full rate which may be fixed for the year in the district.

If any instalment of the cess due upon any of the lands included in these extracts is not paid to the holder of the estate or tenure on or before the date which the <sup>2</sup>[Board of Revenue] may fix for the payment of such instalment, the estate or tenure will be entitled to recover double the amount due with interest and all costs of suit.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>This word and figure in the heading of column 7 were substituted for the word and figure "column 5" by s. 13 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1881 (Ben. Act II of 1881).

See foot-note 3 on page 390, ante.

[Ben. Act IX

#### (Schedule E.)

#### SCHEDULE E.

#### FORM No. I

# Form of notice under section 72 in respect of all mines and quarries

#### District of

# Notice under section 72 of the Cess Act, 1880.

Collector.

Year .....

#### Annexed Form of Return

District .....

Details of yearly despatches from the mines/quarry in the possession or under the control of the person submitting the return:—

District	Pargana	Name of holder or manager.		Annual despatches per annum in tonnes on the average of the last three years for which accounts have been made up.				
in which quar	the mine/ y lies.		Coal.	Tonnage of coke despatched.	Tonnage in terms of coal,	Tonnage in terms of minerals/sand.	Total des- patches to be assessed.	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9

I, X. Y. Z., do declare that the statements contained in the above return are true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Signature.

#### N. B.—This return must be signed by the Owner, Chief Agent, Manager or Occupier.

<sup>1</sup> Form No. I' was originally inserted by s. 12(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964). Later, the present "Form No. I' was substituted for the original by s. 6(1) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984)...

452

۶.

of 1880.]

<u>jen</u>

#### FORM No. II

# Form of notice under section 72 in respect of properties other than mines and quarries.

#### District of

# Notice under section 72 of the Cess Act, 1880, <sup>2</sup>[in respect of properties other than mines and quarries.]

The owner, chief agent, manager or occupier of the (give the designation of the property), situated in the district of ......, is required to lodge in the office of the Collector of the district of ......a return in the form hereunto annexed, showing the net profits of the ......calculated on the average of the profits of the last three years for which accounts have been made up. Such return must be signed by him or his authorised agent, and be lodged within the space of two months from service of this notice, unless within the said two months an extension of the time allowed is obtained from the Collector.

COLLECTOR'S OFFICE,

(Sd/-) A. B.

Collector.

Dated

#### Annexed Form of Return.

## District

Detail of yearly profits of <sup>3\*</sup> \* \* \* railways and tramways or other immovable property in the possession or under the control of the person submitting the return:—

1	2	3	4		
Districts	Parganas	Name of holder or manager.	Annual net profits <i>per annum</i> on the average of the last three years for which accounts have		
in which the property lies.			bcen made up.		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The "heading" of the original form was originally substituted by s. 12(2)(a) of the Wast Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964). Later, the present "heading" was substituted by s. 6(2)(i) of West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

453

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Firstly, the words "in respect of properties other than coal mines" were inserted by s. 12(2)(b) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1964 (West Ben. Act XXIII of 1964), Later, the words within the square brackets were substituted for the words "in respect of properties other than coal mines" by s. 6(2)(ii) of the West Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1984 (West Ben. Act XXXII of 1984).

<sup>&#</sup>x27;The words "mines, quarties," were omitted by s. 6(2)(iii), ibid.

æ.

[Ben. Act IX of 1880.]

# (Schedules F, G.)

I, X. Y. Z., do declare that the statements contained in the above return are true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Signed.....

N. B.-This return must be signed by the owner, chief agent, manager or accupier.

#### SCHEDULE F.

Form of Notice under section 99.

District of

#### Notice under section 99 of the Cess Act, 1880.

The occupiers, tenure-holders, under-tenants, and raiyats on estate or tenure (the estate, tenure or lands to be here clearly designated) are hereby prohibited, until further order of the Collector, from making any payment of rent now or hereafter to become due from them in respect of any land comprised within such estate or tenure except to the Collector of the said district or to (name of person) hereby appointed to receive the same. The Collector will grant receipts for all sums paid; amd such receipts will, under the provisions of the above Act, be a valid discharge, to the extent of the sums covered by such receipts, for rent due, or become due, as above stated by the holders of such receipts. All payments, except to the Collector, until further order will be nul and void.

(Sd/-) A. B.,

Collector.

#### 'SCHEDULE G.

Name of districts in which, or in parts of which, valuation or revaluation shall be made under Chapter VIIA.

I. Burdwan.	2# # # *
2. Bankura.	<sup>3</sup> 7. Maldah.
<ol><li>Midnapore.</li></ol>	<sup>4</sup> Birbhum.
4. 24-Parganas	<sup>4</sup> Hooghly.
5. Nadia	2* * * * *
6. Murshidabad.	<sup>4</sup> Jalpaiguri.

Sch. G was added by s. 13 of the Bengal Cess (Amendment) Act, 1934 (Ben. Act XI of 1934).

'Items (7) Jessore, (8) Khulna, (9) Dacca, (10) Mymensingh, (11) Faridpur, (12) Noakhali, (13) Tippera, (14) Rajshahi, (15) Bogra and (16) Pabna and Rangpur were omitted by Article 3(1) and the Schedule of the Indian Independence (Adaptation of Bengal and Punjab Acts) Order, 1948.

fltem No. 17 was renumbered as item No. 7. ibid.

\*These Districts were included by notification No. 366 T.R., dated the 30th September, 1940, published in the Calcutta Gazette of 1940, Pt. I, page 2907.

454